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Have a fresh
£ M E R

CP Lotus is determined to offer customers with the
fresh and pleasurable shopping experience via our great
variety of high-quality merchandise at saving price, the
clean, tidy and comfortable environment, as well as
warm and friendly service. Each year over 300 million
customers enjoy their shopping at CP Lotus.

Currently, CP Lotus received a number of national
awards and recognition which are China Food Health
Seven Star Prize, CCFA Retail Innovation Awards, and
China Best Corporate University Awards for its retail
management course run by CPCU.
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C.P. Lotus Corporation (“CP Lotus”) is one of the leading retail operators in China.
CP Lotus currently owns and operates 61 retail stores and 1 shopping mall under
the brand name “Lotus”, offering fresh and pleasurable shopping experience to
all families by providing a neat and comfortable environment, an assortment of
high-quality and safe merchandise, and a warm and friendly service.

Our ultimate controlling shareholder, Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
(“CP Group”), is one of the leading conglomerates in Asia with over 90 years of
operating experience in various industries including Agro-Industry & Food, retail
and telecom. While the CP Group is headquartered in Thailand, it is one of the
largest and oldest foreign investors in China today.
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Store and Shopping Mall Network
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Chaoyang Store
Tongzhou Store
Chengfu Lu Store
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Zhengzhou
Zijingshan Lu Store
Donghuan Lu Store

B
KA E
REREE

SHAANXI
PR

2

Xian

Tangyan Lu Store
Changying Lu Store
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Changsha
Xingsha Store
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Guangzhou
Sanyuanli Store
Tianhe Store
Huadu Store
Changxing Store
Huangshixi Lu Store
Xintong Dongling Store
Foshan
Nanhai Store
Sanshui Store
Huanggi Store
Vivo City Store
Jinshazhou Store
Lecong Store
Lishui Store
Jiangmen
Jiangmen Store
Shantou
Changping Store
Chenghai Store
Jinping Store
Tianshan Lu Store
Dongxia Store
Lotus Center
(Shopping Mall)
Chaoyang Mianbei Store
Heping Store
Jieyang
Dongshan Store
Rongcheng Store
Chaozhou
Chaozhou Store
Chaoan Store
Puning
Puning Store
Meizhou
Huagiaocheng Store
Yangjiang
Yangxi Store
Yangdong Store
Zhanjiang
Dingsheng Square Store
Lianjiang Store
Zhongshan
Zhongshan Xiaolan Store
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Kunshan
Changjiangbei Lu Store
Nantong
Gongnongnan Lu Store
Xuzhou
Jiefangnan Lu Store
Heping Lu Store

Wuxi
Huishan Store
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Yanggaonan Lu Store
Chuanchang Lu Store
Wuzhong Lu Store
Shangnan Lu Store
Caoan Lu Store

Super Brand Mall Store
Wenshui Lu Store
Yanggaobei Lu Store
Songjiang Yueyang Store
Chuansha Store
Nanfeng Store
Yanggaozhong Lu Store
Jinshan Weiging Store
Yunchuan Lu Store
Pujiang Store
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Qingdao
Liaoyangxi Lu Store
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Financial Highlights
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Chairman’s Statement

Operating Environment

In 2016, China’'s gross domestic products (“GDP”) grew
by 6.7% to approximately RMB74.4 trillion. The overall
consumer price index (“CPI”) was up by 2.0% compared to
the previous year, the food CPI increased by 4.6%, mainly
driven by the pork CPl which grew 16.9% while the vegetable
CPIl was up by 11.7%. Non-food CPI was relatively stable,
increasing by 1.4%.

Total retail sales of consumer goods in China reached
RMB33.2 trillion, a growth of 10.4% year on year of which
RMB5,155.6 billion came from online sales, an increase
of 26.2% compared to last year. According to the China
National Commercial Information Centre, the sales growth of
100 key retailers dropped by 0.5%.

Business Review

Against the backdrop of a challenging operation environment,
the Group recorded revenue of RMB10,085.7 million and
a loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was RMB537.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. An exchange loss of RMB38.0 million was recorded
due to the depreciation of the renminbi currency, which
was partially offset by the gain from the forward foreign
exchange contracts. Also included in the loss attributable
to equity shareholders was an RMB44.6 million termination
benefits payment relating to the organisational restructuring
to align with the Company’s new development and operation
strategy going forward. We carried out a deep and wide-
ranging review of the business, its strength, shortcomings,
opportunities and threats. The result of this comprehensive
review is a strategic turnaround plan which sets out clear
immediate and medium term objectives and forms the
blueprint for the future development and sustainability
of CP Lotus. The staffing level at head office has been
lowered after a detailed understanding of tasks by role, with
duplication and redundant activity removed and this process
will continue until the optimal staffing level is reached. We
are building a leaner, less-layered and more efficient and
responsive workforce to take us to a new chapter in the
Company’s development. Also included was a goodwill,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
impairment loss of RMB340.5 million which is non-cash
in nature and was included having taken into account the
deterioration of the Group’s business performance in the East
China Region. Although we expect the performance of the
East China Region will show an improvement following the
restructuring, the projected value in use were not sufficient to
support their respective carrying values.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERHBEE

The Group continued its cautious investment approach
in 2016. We opened three new stores, all in Guangdong
province, adding a total sales floor area of 18,600 square
meters. We also closed one store in the city of Hefei and one
store in Xian due to the redevelopment of the properties by
the landlord, the Hefei store and the Xian store are expected
to re-open in the fourth quarter of 2018 and fourth quarter of
2017 respectively. The Group currently has a network of 61
stores and one shopping mall.

Governance

We have continued to ensure full compliance with all relevant
rules and regulations. We have adopted and complied with,
the various recommendations and amendments put forward
by the Stock Exchange in the consultation conclusion paper
on review of the environmental, social and governance
reporting guide to provide the stakeholders a deeper
understanding of the non-financial performance of the Group.

Prospect

China’s economic growth is slowing down. However, the
Chinese government’s major economic initiative is to rely
on internal consumption as a key driver to spur economic
growth and the domestic market. We expect this year will
continue to be very challenging and we are looking to our
management and our staff for more personal accountability,
stronger sense of urgency and better decision making.
However, we remain confident in China’s long term economy
and to show our commitment, we are planning to open at
least five new stores in 2017. We continue to believe our
business model is sustainable over the long term and with
the new initiatives designed to deliver greater efficiencies
and significant cost savings, | remain optimistic that the 2017
performance will show some improvement.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity, on behalf of the Board,
to extend our appreciation and gratitude to our shareholders,
banks and vendors for their continuing trust and support, and
to every one of my colleagues across the business for their
hard work and contribution to what has been an encouraging
year for the Group. Lastly, | would also like to thank my
fellow Board members for their continued guidance and
support.

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman

23 February 2017
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

KPIs of revenue, margin and expenses are detailed in the financial
review. Details of other key performance indicators used in the
management of the business are provided below:
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Retail selling space 2016 2015 Change
TEHEEH —E-XE Z—ZE-EF BE
Store numbers JEHEA 61 60 1.7%
Square metres (' 000) FHKF) 751.7* 726.1 3.5%

We measure our growth not only by how much sales we do, we also
look at the amount of retail selling space which in part is determined
by how fast we expand our network.

Selling space is defined as the sales floor area and area sub-leased to others,
excludes shopping mall

* excludes the two stores currently closed for renovation
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Like-for-like sales growth 2016 2015 Change
Bt IR R —E-XFE Z—ZEB-EHEF 25
Sales growth HEER -8.2% -3.6% -4.6%

Comparable store sales are a valuable measure not only of
individual store performance but of the overall financial health of the
Company.

Like-for-like sales growth is calculated by comparing the sales derived in the
stores, which were opened over 12 full months as two consecutive years
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Average customer count per day 2016 2015 Change
BHEHEEAR —E-RE ZZB-IF 25
Customer visit FIEREH 4,874 5,324 -8.5%

By looking at the customer count change and in particular the
change in different demographic groups helps the Company to
devise more focused marketing strategies.

Average customer count is calculated as total customer count divided by
365 days of Like-for-like store only
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

FINANCIAL REVIEW

C.P. Lotus Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) recorded a net loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2016(the “Reporting Period”) of RMB537.6 million (2015: loss of
RMB18.0 million).

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Bt %5 0 8

NEEBRBERQAT ([AAT)REHMBLT
(B AEE)BE=E—A~"E+=Z/A=+—
HIEFE ((REHE D HFE5RQ B RREGE
S 58 A A R%537,600,000T (ZE—HF
A E#18,000,0007Tc 2 &) °

BE—E-—ANFEF+ZHA=+—HULFE

2016 2015 Change Change
ZBE-RAE ZB-E1F BE 28

RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEBER ARBEER AREEER %
Revenue ON 10,085.7 10,660.4 (574.7) (5.4)
Gross profit EN 1,738.5 1,831.4 (92.9) (5.1)
Other revenue and other net loss Hitlhis R E M EEFE 124.1 491.9 (367.8) (74.8)
Distribution and store operating costs BEREREERK (1,892.0) (1,915.1) 23.1 1.2)
Administrative expenses THER (402.5) (334.3) (68.2) 20.4
Finance costs BERK (82.8) (73.8) (9.0) 12.2
Income tax FieH (22.9) (18.2) @7 25.8
Loss for the year FEFR (537.6) (18.1) (519.5) 2,870.2

Loss for the year attributable to: NTATEEFEFSE:

Equity shareholders of the Company ARRRE (537.6) (18.0) (519.6) 2,886.7
Non-controlling interests FERER - (0.1) 0.1 (100.0)
(537.6) (18.1) (519.5) 2,870.2

Revenue fell by RMB574.7 million or 5.4% to RMB10,085.7 million.
The reduction was due to the fact that the revenue generated by
three new stores opened in 2016 was not enough to offset the 8.2%
reduction in same store sales which was a result of the continued
easing of the economy, the government’s anti-waste campaign
and the intensified competition from online retailers. All categories
recorded a reduction in sales compared to the previous year.

Gross profit margin was 17.2% of sales (2015: 17.2%). Gross
margin is comprised of front and back margin. Front margin is
sales minus direct cost of sales; back margin represents income
from suppliers such as discounts and allowances. Front margin
improved by 0.3 percentage point to 8.5% and back margin down
0.3 percentage point from 9.0% to 8.7%. The front margin amount
remained relatively stable but the improvement in front margin
percentage was mainly the result of lower sales. The drop in sales
led to lower volume rebates received from suppliers and hence a
reduced back margin.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN
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Other revenue and other net loss was RMB124.1 million or 1.2%
of sales (2015: RMB491.9 million or 4.6% of sales), comprised
mainly lease income which is income received from the leasing
of store space and impairment loss of goodwill, intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment. Lease income increased by
RMB49.0 million to RMB481.2 million as a result of contribution
from the three new stores during the year under review and higher
rental charged upon lease renewal. An exchange loss of RMB75.9
million as a result of depreciation in RMB/US dollars exchange rate
of approximately of 6.8% during the year was recorded against
our US dollars (“USD”) borrowing; however, such loss was partially
offset by the gain from the USD forward foreign exchange contracts
of approximately RMB37.8 million which however was reduced
from RMB72.8 million in 2015. Those contracts mature on 21 July
2017. In addition, as the performance of the Group’s business
operation in the East China region did not meet the target for the
year, an impairment loss of approximately RMB268.2 million was
made on the goodwill and intangible assets which arose from the
acquisition of Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Lid.
(“SLS”) in 2008. A further impairment loss of RMB72.3 million was
made in respect of the property, plant and equipment of some of the
stores in the East China region comprised in the 2008 acquisition.
A RMB10.7 million impairment loss was made over the relevant
leasehold improvements and furniture, fixtures and equipment in
respect of certain stores closed in 2016 due to the redevelopment
plan initiated by the landlords for the sites where these stores were
located. These impairment losses are non-cash in nature.

Front Margin
Al & R E

M Back Margin
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

Distribution and store operating costs was RMB1,892.0 million
or 18.8% of sales (2015: RMB1,915.1 million or 18.0% of sales).
It comprised mainly personnel expenses, rental, utilities and
depreciation and amortisation for a total of RMB1,626.8 million
and represented 7.3%, 5.2%, 1.8% or 1.8% of sales respectively.
Personnel expenses increased by approximately RMB45.6 million
was mainly attributable to the opening of three new stores and
annual increase in statutory minimum wages. Rental expenses
reduced by RMB6.4 million due to the closure of two stores, one
in April 2016 and one in October 2016, while two of the three new
stores opened in December 2016. Total distribution and store
operating costs reduced by RMB23.1 million as a result of the
continued refining of cost structure and improvement in productivity
and work efficiency leading to a reduction in controllable expenses
such as cleaning, security, sales promotion and transportation
expenses.

Administrative expenses was RMB402.5 million or 4.0% of sales
compared to RMB334.3 million or 3.1% of sales in 2015. It mainly
included personnel expenses of RMB304.0 million, depreciation
and amortisation charge of RMB17.2 million, rental of RMB16.7
million and professional fee of RMB9.9 million. The increase was
mainly from the increase in personnel expenses of RMB43.3 million,
largely being the restructuring cost relating to the organisational
restructuring to align with the Company’s new development and
operation strategy going forward.

Financial costs was RMB82.8 million, or 0.8% of sales, an increase
of RMB9.0 million from last year.

Income tax was RMB22.9 million (2015: RMB18.2 million).

Net loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB537.6 million (2015: RMB18.0 million). The significant increase
was largely due to the increase in impairment loss of RMB336.2
million, the reduced gain on the forward foreign exchange contracts
and the exchange loss of RMB42.3 million and a termination
benefits of approximately RMB44.6 million.

Capital expenditure was RMB198.2 million for the year under
review, mainly for the opening of new stores, renovation of existing
stores and replacement of equipment. The Group financed its
capital expenditure through a combination of cash generated from
its operating activities and banking facilities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R B B IR R

As at 31 December 2016
R=F-—NF+=HA=+—H

2016 2015 Change Change
—B-RE —B-If 28 28
RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEER ARBEER ARBEER %
Property, plant and equipment and ¥ BERRER 1,689.7 1,797.2 (107.5) (6.0)
interests in leasehold land held for EERECZEALY
own use under operating leases HE#ER
Goodwill [EES 2,654.3 2,911.8 (257.5) (8.8)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEE 204.9 165.8 39.1 23.6
Pledged bank deposits BEARTEN 59.5 59.4 0.1 0.2
Inventories 7E 1,240.5 1,221.4 19.1 1.6
Trade and other receivables 2ER A ERNE 830.3 737.1 93.2 12.6
Other assets HinEE 207.0 234.9 (27.9) (11.9)
Total Assets BEE 6,886.2 7,127.6 (241.4) (3.4)
Loans from controlling shareholder, ERBREER  BOEX
bank loans, overdrafts and other loans ~ EX R EtEH 1,241.2 1,085.5 155.7 14.3
Trade payables and other liabilities BEEAYNERAMEE 41221 3,992.1 130.0 3.3
Total liabilities BEE 5,363.3 5,077.6 285.7 5.6
Net Assets BEFER 1,522.9 2,050.0 (521.1) (25.7)
Share capital L 405.7 405.7 - -
Reserves e 1,117.2 1,642.7 (525.5) (32.0)
Non-controlling interests FERER - 1.6 (1.6) (100.0)
Total Equity EREE 1,522.9 2,050.0 (527.1) (25.7)

Property, plant and equipment and interests in leasehold Y% . EERRERLEHE>E B i
land held for own use under operating lease increased, mainly HEREZENTEFER SR H/EEHE M
because of additions in property, plant and equipment of RMB198.2 & mu M AEY%L EFERRIBARK
million for the opening of the three new stores and other store 198 200,0007T ; REERZITER HIHS &
renovation; depreciation and amortisation for the year of RMB192.0  x R#5192,000,0007% ' & E R EFEEE R H
million, and because certain property, plant and equipment with “giFEIYE - FERSEEGESARK
carrying amount of RMB113.8 million was disposed of or impaired 113 800,000 °

during the year under review.
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Goodwill of RMB2,654.3 million of which RMB2,526.8 million,
RMB124.0 million and RMB3.4 million are allocated to the East
China Region, the South China Region and the North China Region
respectively. Impairment test on the goodwill value is carried out
annually based on a number of assumptions including discount
rates, forecast growth rates and expected changes to direct prices
and selling costs. A goodwill impairment loss of RMB257.5 million
was recorded in 2016 having taken into account the performance
of the Group’s business operation in the East China Region did not
meet the target.

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB204.9 million as of
31 December 2016 (2015: RMB165.8 million).

Pledged bank deposits amounted to RMB59.5 million as at
31 December 2016 (2015: RMB59.4 million), mainly represents
deposits pledged for the issuance of bank accepted bills for
payments to suppliers.

Inventories balance was RMB1,240.5 million as at 31 December
2016, an increase of RMB19.1 million with an average inventory
turnover days of 54 days (2015: 47 days).

Trade and other receivables increased by RMB93.2 million to
RMB830.3 million (2015: RMB737.1 million). Included in the balance
was RMB401.9 million (2015: RMB341.7 million) of trade receivables
and other receivables. All the trade and other receivables, apart
from rental deposits of RMB117.6 million (2015: RMB97.0 million),
are expected to be recovered within one year and thus no provision
was made. Also included in the balance was RMB387.2 million
(2015: RMB319.6 million) of receivables from related companies.
Credit terms of 30 days to 90 days was offered to related
companies and corporate customers with ongoing relationship,
73% of the trade receivable outstanding had an ageing of less than
90 days. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, RMB89.3
million or 22.8% of total trade receivables due from related
companies had been received, which was all included in over 90
days category in the ageing analysis. The forward foreign exchange
contracts with a net fair value of RMB41.2 million (2015: RMB75.8
million) has been regcognised as derivative financial instruments
and included in the trade and other receivables during the year
under review.

Other assets of RMB207.0 million mainly comprised of intangible
assets of RMB145.6 million, deferred tax assets of RMB35.6 million,
and prepaid lease payments for premises of RMB16.2 million.
Intangible assets relate to operating lease agreements acquired in
the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and in 2012. Intangible assets
are amortised using the straight-line method over the remaining
lease terms which vary from 10 to 30 years. An impairment loss on
the intangible assets of RMB10.7 million was recorded having taken
into account the performance of the Group’s business operation in
the East China Region did not meet the target.
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Loans from controlling shareholder, bank loans, overdrafts and
other loans amounted to RMB1,241.2 million as at 31 December
2016, an increase of RMB155.7 million, due mainly to the additional
borrowing to finance the business operation. On 21 December
2016, the Group entered into certain loan agreements with C.P.
Holdings (BVI) Investment Company Limited (“CPH”), the controlling
shareholder of the Company, whereby CPH agreed to provide loans
in an aggregate amount of USD139,770,000 (the “Shareholder’s
Loans”) for a terms of two years to enable the Group to fully prepay
the outstanding amount under the USD200,000,000 facility with a
group of banks in Thailand.

LOAN PORTFOLIO
E N AII\E- A

As at 31 December 2016
R=ZB-ARFE+=HA=+—H

EEENWR D

L —w

ERBRERX RTEX BXRHMERN
R-ZB-R"FE+ZA=+-REBMTARE
155,700,000 A R #1,241,200,0007T * =2

REMERABNRERF - R-2F—RF
TZAZt+-—H AEEREXQTAZERR

RC.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited ((CPH]) RSI X &E TERH=ZE B
CPHRE & |‘]4<$ITE1#%;£139,770,0007<75
(Fﬂxiﬁ L) ZMEHER  FAKETEE
{8 12 B4 %= B 4R ¥ 7] i£ 2200,000,000% T 2 &
NAEHBETZREESE -

Loans from
Bank loans and controlling Loans from third
overdrafts shareholder parties Total
BITERREX ERBRER E=FRHEZEX b
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEBEER ARBEER ARBEER ARBBER
Within one year —FR 222.9 - - 222.9
Over one year —F% - 971.9 46.4 1,018.3
Total ok 222.9 971.9 46.4 1,241.2
Trade payables and other liabilities as at 31 December 2016 was ¥ EENREBEREMEER = /\_$‘|' =
RMB4,122.1 million (2015: RMB3,992.1 million) of which RMB140.4 B =+ — H A& A K #4,122, 100 000t (=&
million (2015: RMB139.6million) was due to related parties. —H & AR%3092100,0007t) @ Ed A
R #140,400,000t (S —H & : AR ¥
139,600,0007T) A FEHEEIA L 2 RIE -
Reserves balance was RMB1,117.2 million as at 31 December MER-ZE—XR"E+_A=+—-HZ&&%
2016 (2015: RMB1,642.7 million). It comprises share premium % ARK#1,117,200,000t (=& —H F:
of RMB1,933.2 million, other reserves of RMB243.8 million and A R #1,642,700, 00071:) o It B E K 7
accumulated losses of RMB1,059.8 million. %18 A R #1,933,200,0005t » H fth % &
AR #243,800,0007T & B 5t A1 18 A R #
1,059,800,0007tT °
Capital structure BEAREE
The Group finances its own working capital requirement through ZRE&EBEEE - £ Hii‘ RERITREME
a combination of funds generated from operations, loans from TA,\HF$Z§QT’FJ‘% ﬁzlx °
controlling shareholder and bank and other borrowings.
Liquidity and finance resources TENME R B E R

During the year under review, the Group’s sources of funds were
generated primarily from operating activities, loans from controlling
shareholder and bank facilities. The increase in net cash and cash
equivalents was mainly due to the cash generated from operation
and additional borrowings from controlling shareholder and banks
exceeding the CAPEX payments and repayment of bank loans and
interest. We expect we will continue to have sufficient cash to meet
our business needs.

REBEEER - ZIK‘EIZE%H&J?IE/FQ
BEYK EEBRRER &ﬁ&hﬁmﬁoiﬁé&ﬁ
SERFEENFEAREEEE 2R ERIE
IIERBRRBITERBIBE AR EEER
TERERFE - AEEFEPBEEEETER
& LUBENEBHRE -

C.P. Lotus Corporation |M&&7EH R



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

For the year
ended 31 December

BE+=A=t+—ALFE

2016 2015

—E-AE C—T-5f

Cash and cash equivalents (RMB million) BeRkReEH (ARBEET) 204.9 165.8
Loans from controlling shareholder, ERBERER RITER

bank loans, overdrafts and other loans EXRHEMER

(RMB million) (NREBER) 1,241.2 1,085.5
Net cash inflow after effect of ReERNFHE

foreign exchange rate changes (REEIHIBEREE 2 EE)

(RMB million) (ANREBER) 21.1 25.7
Current ratio (x) FEE =R (£3) 0.56 0.53
Quick ratio (x) RENLE ZE (/F) 0.26 0.24
Gearing ratio (x) (defined as loans from EREEEE (1F)

controlling shareholder, bank loans, (MERRRER - RITERK

overdrafts and other loans BEXRHEMERR

divided by total equity) PRUBERTTE) 0.82 0.53

During the year under review, bank loans and overdrafts bear
floating interest at six to twelve-month People’s Bank of China Rate
(“PBOC Rate”) multiplied by 1.10 to 1.13, being 4.35% to 4.92% per
annum. The loans from the Company’s controlling shareholder bear
interest at three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR?”)
plus 4.50% to 5.65% per annum.

Foreign currency exposure

The Directors consider that as the Group’s retail operations are all
based in the PRC, the Group is not exposed to significant currency
risks in its retail operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from controlling
shareholder and other loans which are denominated in USD.
The Company entered into USD forward foreign contracts with a
combined notional amount of USD139.77 million which expire on
21 July 2017. A gain of RMB37.8 million was recorded during the
year ended 31 December 2016 from these forward contracts as a
result of the depreciation of the RMB. The Group does not enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had issued one guarantee to
an independent third party which expires in 2025 and one guarantee
to a bank which expires in April 2017 in respect of finance lease
arrangements entered into by a subsidiary. The Directors do not
consider it probable that claims will be made against the Group
under either of the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group
as at 31 December 2016 under the guarantees issued was 100% of
the future minimum lease payments under the lease arrangements
entered into by the subsidiary of RMB60.0 million.
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Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had outstanding share
charges created in favour of Bangkok Bank Company Limited,
Hong Kong Branch (“BBL”) on 16 December 2011 whereby, all
the shares of its subsidiary, Prime Global Retail Management &
Advisory Limited, were pledged. Equitable share mortgages were
also created by the Company in favour of BBL on 16 December
2011 whereby the Company agreed to pledge all shares of its
subsidiaries, Chia Tai Trading (Beijing) Company Limited, Chia
Tai Trading (Qingdao) Company Limited, Chia Tai Trading (Xian)
Company Limited, Chia Tai Trading (Zhengzhou) Company
Limited, Chia Tai Distribution Investment Company Limited,
Yangtze Supermarket Investment Co., Limited and Union Growth
Investments Limited (“Union Growth”).

As at 31 December 2016, there was also outstanding an equitable
share mortgage which had been created by Union Growth in favour
of BBL on 16 December 2011 whereby Union Growth agreed to
pledge all shares of its subsidiary, Lotus-CPF (PRC) Investment
Company Limited (“Lotus-CPF”), and 10,821,033 shares of Chia Tai-
Lotus (Guangdong) Investment Co., Ltd. (“CT-Lotus”). Additionally,
an equitable share mortgage was created by Lotus-CPF in favour
of BBL on 16 December 2011 whereby Lotus-CPF agreed to pledge
97,389,312 shares of its subsidiary, CT-Lotus.

All the abovementioned share charge and equitable share charges
in favour of BBL were created to secure the Group’s term loan
facility of USD200.0 million in 2011. Following the full prepayment
of the facility on 30 December 2016, all of these share charges and
equitable share charges were fully released on 4 January 2017.
No security over any of the Group’s assets was created for the
USD139.77 million facility provided by CPH.

Employees, training and remuneration policy

The Group employed approximately 13,970 employees as at
31 December 2016, of whom approximately 1,260 were head
office staff and approximately 12,710 were store and distribution
centre employees. The Group remunerates its employees based
on their performance and experience and prevailing market rate.
Other employee benefits include insurance and medical cover, and
subsidised training programs.

EEENWR D

W

BEEEA
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Store network

During the year under review, the Group opened three new stores,
all of which are situated in the Guangdong Province. The three
new stores have a total sales area of approximately 18,600 square
meters and all of which are located in the second and third tier cities
of Yangjiang, Foshan and Shantou. The Group also closed a store
in Hefei in April 2016 and one store in Xian in October 2016 due to
the landlord’s decision to redevelop the sites where the stores were
located. The Group expects to reopen the Hefei store in the fourth
quarter of 2018 and the Xian store in the fourth quarter of 2017. As
of 31 December 2016, the Group owned and operated a total of 61
retail stores with a total sales area of over 519,400 square meters
and a shopping mall LOTUS CENTER.

Optimisation of merchandise and enhanced relationship with
suppliers

During the year under review, the Group continued to review and
enhance its merchandise mix and offerings. We continued to expand
our direct sourcing capabilities and more product supply origins
were identified. More direct purchases for fresh food had been
made providing our customers with better range and lower prices
through the elimination of middlemen and agents. In addition, the
Group continued to invest in quality control to ensure freshness and
food safety, strictly adhered to the laws and regulations of food and
production safety.

The Group continued to review its inventory level regularly in
particular the slow-moving items and continued to strengthen
inventory management, such as forecast and stock clearance plan
after tab promotion ends.

As the disposable income continued to rise and customers look
for more premium products, we have expanded our import team
capability to bring in a wider range of imports products directly from
overseas vendors. Currently, we import mainly snacks, beverages
and health supplements and we will continue to add other
categories such as kitchenware and other groceries. Our objective
is to for import sales to account for over 10% of total sales. The
two bakery central-kitchen enabled us to broaden the product
categories as well as better control of quality and consistency of our
products on offer.
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The Group continued its review of the allocation of sales space
among different categories in response to the relaxation of China’s
one-child policy and the impact of online retail to the demand
of particular categories of merchandise. More space has been
allocated to mother and baby care section as a wider range of
products were brought in to satisfy the growing demand while
sales space for electronics and apparel has been reduced. In
addition, our house brand team continued to work closely with the
merchandise and marketing team to develop competitively priced
house brand products to enhance the Group’s differentiation and
competitiveness.

The Group further enhanced the data-based approach for supplier
selection and procurement. The Group selected suppliers in an
open, fair and transparent manner and formed strategic alliance
with the suppliers to carry out monitoring and assessment, so as
to keep abreast with market trends and improve sales by bringing
in new products. We continued to work closely with our suppliers
and strictly performed our obligations under supply contracts and
offered promotional display of products accordingly, gaining wide
recognition among the suppliers. Our vendor service team continued
to provide high quality service to our vendors with designated office
and meeting space to receive the vendors and answer any enquiry.

Improvement of operation and system efficiency

The Group continued to make use of systems and tools to improve
operating efficiency. During the year under review, we continued
to enhance the features and functions of our vendor platform
system including early availability of performance reports and more
flexible inquiry options. We also completed the development of
the “invoice-tracking” system with a delivery company. Both our
suppliers and our operating subsidiaries are now able to track the
status of the invoices online. This new system went live in the first
quarter of 2016.

All our shopping carts are now coin-operated, so that customers
have to return the shopping cart to the designated area after use in
order to get the coin back. We continued to change the price-tag
from traditional paper to the use of electronic price-tag in our Fresh
department which allows instant price change to reflect the level of
freshness of the products. This helps reduce shrinkage and ensure
no price discrepancy at check-out. The Group reduced energy costs
by imposing control on the use of electricity at stores in different
periods, adjusting the calculation of electricity charges and installing
energy-saving equipment.

Our nationwide invoice processing team in Shantou continued to
receive and process all merchandise invoices of the Group for better
invoice management and reduce processing time.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued the enhancement
of the upgraded E-contract system enabling the data on the
e-contract to be shared with the VMS system. This helped remove
the need for duplicate entry and eliminate human error in data-input
and improve efficiency.
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We continued our commitment to total quality management (“TQM”)
to achieve operational excellence. Currently 48 of our retail stores
and all distribution centres are ISO9001 certified. We will continue
to work on improving and implementing our TQM.

Optimisation of supply chain management

The distribution centre is an integral part of our retail business and
the Group had continued to strengthen its network and improved
functionality and efficiency. During the year under review, the Group
continued to strengthen its supply chain process and procedures
and continued to make use of tools and equipment to improve
efficiency and lower human errors. During the year under review,
the Group launched a number of research projects of which some
had been put in practice including adjustment of workflow of
the receiving and quality control departments, and using a new
equipment management method thereby effectively reducing the
cost of equipment leasing.

Strengthening of customer satisfaction and enhancement of
brand awareness

The Group continued our very successful “50% thanks-giving
activity” throughout the year with a number of carefully selected
products sold at a 50% discount and certain other products also
sold at a hefty discount. The activity was not only well-received
by our customers but we received very positive support from our
vendors too as this creates a platform/opportunity for vendors not
only to be able to sell more but also a platform for them to introduce
new products. The Group also held a couple of “midnight bonanza”
in the Shanghai region to further boast sales.

To encourage and reward our members to frequent and spend
more, we continued the “Members’ spend week-by-week”:
customers who visit our stores in consecutive weeks and spend
over a certain amount of money each week will be rewarded with a
cash rebate based on the amount they spent.

We continued to raise awareness of women’s welfare through our
widely recognized “Spring Pink” theme; activities include mobile
games where customers receive red packet and messages about
love and care when they follow the Lotus account on WeChat. We
also cooperated with Deslon and Disney and our customers were
able to use the coupons earned to redeem knifes and rucksacks
respectively.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Our performance depends on our ability to attract and retain
customers and to service their demand. We continued to make sure
our customer service centre in each store and also our call centre
are operating effectively and there is sufficient capacity to handle
volumes. In addition, we also conducted focus group surveys to
assess customer opinions and satisfaction levels to ensure that
our staff remains focused on delivering excellent customer service.
The Group’s customer base is diversified and excluding the
wholesale sales to the subsidiaries of Whole Sino Limited (“WSL”),
a related party, there is no customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 1% of the Group’s revenue. The subsidiaries of
WSL own and operate certain Lotus retail stores in China, and in
2016, merchandise sold by the Group to these stores amounted to
approximately RMB749.1 million or 7.4% of sales (2015: RMB991.4
million or 9.3%). Prices offered to WSL were determined based on
prevailing market prices and no less favourable than those available
to the Group from independent third parties.

Continued store innovation

The Group continued its efforts to transform our stores into lifestyle
model to provide one-stop shopping convenience and a more
comfortable shopping environment. During the Year under review,
we completed the renovation work of nine stores.

During the Year under review, the Group continued to improve
tenant mix in our lease area to offer our customers with diversified
and well-known brands and we continued to renovate the vacant
or low-productivity areas into revenue generating leasable areas in
order to increase our lease income and bring in more customers.

Legal and regulatory compliance

The Group strives to comply in all material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations which are regarded as having a significant
impact on the Group, and has not come across incidence of
material breach or non-compliance during the year under review.

People Development

Training and development is one of the strategic priorities in
attracting, developing and retaining knowledgeable and skilled
workforce. During the period under review, the Group completed
the overhaul of the organization structure of the East Region head
office. By simplifying the reporting hierarchy and optimisation of
roles and functions, we were able to reduce the East Region head
office headcount by over 45%.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

Our Safety, Occupational Health and Environmental (“SHE”)
Policy

As a responsible employer and store operator, the Group pays great
attention to the health and safety of our employees, our customers
and our business partners. In addition, we also recognise we have
a responsibility and an obligation to work to reduce the direct
impact of our business operations on the natural environment. Our
performance in SHE is an integral part of our business activities and
a foundation for sustainable development. Our SHE commitment
includes:

° Promote SHE culture within the organisation and implement
SHE policy and procedures to create a sustainable future;

° Improve the environmental quality of the workplace and ensure
that the safety and health of our employees is the top priority;

e  Comply with all rules and regulations relating to our business
operation;

° Prevention of pollution, disease, injury and accidents;

° Provide continuous training to our employees to increase
awareness and knowledge of SHE Policy and encourage
participation in SHE activities;

e  Explore opportunities through research and new technology to
promote energy saving, resource recovery, recycling and re-use
of resources; and

e Establish effective communication channel to convey the SHE
policy to employees, customers, business partners and the
public.

The SHE department identified a total of 48 policies and guidelines
relating to SHE matters promulgated by relevant government
agencies and ensured that the Group is in full compliance.

For details of the environmental related activities performed in
2016, please refer Company’s 2016 ESG Report published on the
Company’s website and on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.”
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Group

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations
or growth prospects maybe affected by risks and uncertainties
pertaining to the Group’s businesses, the factors set out below are
considered to be the principal risks faced by the Group. They do
not comprise all of the risks associated with our business and are
not set out in priority order. Additional risks not presently known
to management, or currently deemed to be less material, may also
have an adverse effect on the business.

Business Risks

Unclear strategy or strategy not being implemented - Our
business may suffer if we do not have a clear defined strategy
or if our strategy follows the wrong direction or is not effectively
communicated or implemented. The Group is operating in a highly
competitive industry and the retail industry itself is undergoing
a transformational change in this digital age. An unclear or
unsuccessful strategy against the growth of e-commerce as well
as against other competitors and failure to compete on areas
including price, product range, quality and multichannel service may
adversely affect our market share and profitability.

Mitigating measures:

Business strategy is reviewed regularly to determine how sales and
profit budgets can be achieved or bettered, and business operations
made more efficient. This process includes setting of seasonal and
annual budgets and longer term financial objectives to identify ways
to improve/increase shareholders value. Critical to these processes
are the consideration of wider economic and industry specific
trends that affect the Group’s businesses, the competitiveness
position of its product offer and the financial structure of the Group.
In addition, the Audit Committee monitors strategic and operational
risk regularly and any significant matters are reported to the Board.

Product safety — Concerns regarding the safety of products offered
at our stores or the safety and quality of our supply chain could
cause customers to avoid purchasing certain products from us even
if the basis for the concern is beyond our control or whether or not
based on fact. These concerns could discourage consumers from
buying from us and may have an adverse effect on our turnover and
our reputation. Our business may also suffer if we fail to work with
our suppliers to ensure our products are designed and delivered to
meet a high standard and to ensure we can trace provenance.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CEENERE SR

Mitigating measures:

Product quality and safety are core requirements at all stages of the
product’s life cycle. The Group reference and assist suppliers based
on strict requirement specifications for hygiene and conformity,
among other things. Throughout the supply chain, inspections are
increased and particular attention is paid to fresh produce. Stores
perform daily checks on the quality of other merchandise and are
subject to rigorous analysis and auditing procedures.

Distribution centre and logistics:

The Group regularly reviews the warehousing and distribution
operations that support the business. Risks include business
interruptions due to physical damage, access restrictions,
breakdowns, capacity storages, IT systems failure, inefficient
processes and third party failures.

Mitigating measures:

Planning processes are in place to ensure there is sufficient
warehouse handling capacity for expected future volumes over
the short and longer terms. In addition, service levels, warehouse
handling, inbound logistics and delivery costs are monitored
continuously to ensure goods are delivered to our warehouses and
our retail stores in a timely and cost-efficient manner.

Retail store network — The Group is primarily engaged in the
operation of hypermarkets, and our performance depends on
profitably developing the trading space of the store network.
Prime retail sites will generally remain in demand, and increased
competition for these can result in higher future rents.

Mitigating measures:

The predominately leased portfolio is actively monitored by senior
management, with openings, refits and closures based on store
profitability and cash payback. The Group will continue to invest in
new space where its financial criteria are met, and will renew and
refurbish its existing portfolio where appropriate.

Reliance on key systems — The Group rely heavily on the continued
availability and integrity of its IT systems, which must record
and process substantial volume of data and conduct inventory
management accurately and quickly. Any significant failure in the IT
processes of our retail operations in stores or in our supply chain
could impact our ability to trade. The damage or interruption of any
of the systems can be due to events that are beyond the control of
the Group.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Mitigating measures:

System’s vulnerability and penetration testing, business continuity
plans and back up facilities are in place and are tested regularly
to ensure that business interruptions are minimized and data is
protected from corruption or unauthorized use. IT risks are also
managed through the application of internal policies and change
management procedures. Despite having proper procedures in
place, the Group cannot fully guarantee our systems are foolproof.

Foreign Exchange and Interest Rate Risks

The Group’s retail operations are all based in the PRC and all of our
turnover and substantial portion of our expenditure are denominated
in Renminbi, the Group is therefore not exposed to significant
currency risk in its operations. However, as RMB is not a freely
convertible currency, the Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
from loans from controlling shareholder, bank loans and other loans
which are denominated in USD. The risk that exchange rate volatility
may have an adverse effect on our balance sheet or profit and loss
account.

The interest rate for the shareholder loans and other loans is based
on LIBOR, our profit and loss account maybe adversely affected by
rising interest rates.

Mitigating measures:

CP Lotus operates a centralised treasury function which is
responsible for managing its liquidity, interest and foreign currency
risks. The Group’s treasury function operates under a Board-
approved policy. This includes approved counter-party and other
limits which are designed to mitigate the Group’s exposure to
financial risk. However, there can be no guarantee that the Group
would be able to compensate or hedge against such adverse
effects.

Funding and Liquidity Risks

The Group finances its operations by a combination of funds
generated primarily from operating activities, loans from
shareholders and banking facilities. Weak performance could
put pressure on free cash flow and credit metrics and affect our
ability to borrow or increase our cost of our borrowing. In addition,
underperform against plan may result in impairment of asset values.

Mitigating measures:
The Group has adequate medium and long term financing in place

to support its business operations, and the Group’s cash position
and forecasts are regularly monitored and reported.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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People

The Group’s continued development relies on the continued service
of its senior management and technical personnel, and its ability to
attract, retain, develop and motivate the best people with the right
capabilities at all levels, failure to do so could limit our ability to
succeed.

Mitigating measures:

Group offers competitive compensation packages as well as
subsidised training program, professional courses and seminars,
and regular on the job training. Remuneration policies and
succession planning are subject to periodic benchmarking to ensure
they remain appropriate for the Group. ”

LOOKING FORWARD

We expect 2017 to be another challenging year with the growth of
the Chinese economy continued to ease. The Group will continue to
maintain a stable pace in new store expansion in leveraging on the
opportunities arising from urbanisation and selecting the location
of new stores in a more prudent manner to ensure their quality
and profitability. At the same time, we will continue to optimise
our process, and improve our logistics and distribution and IT
systems to enhance the productivity of our staff and effectiveness
of the supply chain. We will continue the restructuring of the head
offices including streamlining administrative process to reduce the
office overheads and headcounts; and we have been having active
negotiations with a number of landlords to restructure the rental
payment structure. We will continue to capture new consumer
trend, improve product mix, increase direct procurement and step
up our house brand development capability. We are confident of
improvement in our operating performance in 2017.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards
of corporate governance that properly protect and promote the
interests of all shareholders at all times. The Board believes that
good corporate governance practices are the cornerstones for a
successful business, not an exercise in compliance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s corporate governance
guidelines and practices. During the year, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all the relevant code provisions
prescribed in the Corporate Governance Code (“Code Provisions”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), except that the Chairman did not attend the annual
general meeting held on 7 June 2016 due to another business
engagement, which deviated from code provision E.1.2.

THE BOARD

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses. The Board decides
on corporate strategies and supervises the financial performance,
management and organisation on behalf of the shareholders.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies and
management of the Group’s businesses to certain executive
directors and senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of fourteen
members, nine are executive directors (including a Chairman,
an Executive Chairman and four Vice Chairmen) and five are
independent non-executive directors. Detailed biographies of the
directors can be found on pages 33 to 37 of this annual report.

On 10 November 2016, Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul has resigned as
executive director of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

The roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company are separated
and the positions are held by separate individuals with a view to
maintain an effective segregation of duties between management
of the Board and day-to-day management of the Group’s business.
There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between the Chairman and CEO.
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TREARES

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Company.
He is responsible for overseeing the function of the Board and
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company and
providing leadership to the Board so that the Board works efficiently
and discharges its responsibilities and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

Mr. Weng Hai Xin is the CEO of the Company. He is responsible
for the day-to-day management of the C.P. Lotus Group’s business
within the strategic development plans of the Company overseen by
Mr. Li Wen Hai, Executive Chairman of the Company.

Board and Committee Attendance
The Board held five regular meetings in 2016. Details of the

attendance of each individual director at Board meetings, committee
meetings and general meetings during 2016 are set out below:

HEALERRRAZER - REEEFRES
SPEERBIFT AR AR REERR - HE
EEEHANEMTERBITHRE  BUEMR
FEERAECSRTEESSERERE -

PEBAERARQRAZEFENTE  AERF
BBLE (MTESR) EEARQARKERE
SR MEEREEXRFE Z2AEER -

EZERZEGIHER

EEER-_E-AFETIAEHRESSS
2 OBUEER-_ZE-AFRUFEESS
& ZESERKRRAEZFHRBHEHINT

No. of meetings attended/held

8 Siv-£ VA I
Corporate
Nomination  Remuneration Audit  Governance
Directors Bz Shareholder Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
RRAS Ezg RzZEe HHzEE ENZBE (L¥EhRZEE
Executive Directors YnES
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEARE 0/2 2/5 11 17 - -
Mr. Li Wen Hai TEEEE 112 4/5 - - - -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont ABMEE 072 3/5 - - - -
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed RIEE %4 2/2 5/5 - - - -
Mr. Michael Ross EFELE 0/2 3/5 - - - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping B RE 0/2 0/5 - - - -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont B vt 0/2 3/5 - - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont Y 0/2 1/5 - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong % 4 112 4/5 - N 2/2* 1
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Piyawat Titasattavorakul 7 &
(resigned on 10 November 2016) (R=B-RE
t-ATHEH) 0/1 1/3 - - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYF#7ES
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit & 22 4/5 1 11 2/2 il
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara%t & 2/2 5/5 - 11 212 -
Mr. lithaporn Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong % 4 2/2 5/5 - - - -
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech2t & 212 4/5 - - - i
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo PHRLE 2/2 5/5 1N 15 2/2 -
No. of meetings gE8A 2 5 1 1 2 1

*

attended on voluntary basis
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Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and
Suphachai Chearavanont are brothers. They are the cousins
of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Michael Ross is the brother-in-
law of Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont
and Suphachai Chearavanont and cousin-in-law of Mr. Meth
Jiaravanont. Save as disclosed above, there are no family
relationships among members of the Board and between the
Chairman and the CEO.

Continuous Professional Development

The individual training record of each director of the Company
was received for the year ended 31 December 2016. Messrs.
Soopakij Chearavanont, Li Wen Hai, Narong Chearavanont, Chan
Yiu-Cheong, Ed, Meth Jiaravanont, Suphachai Chearavanont,
Umroong Sanphasitvong, Piyawat Titasattavorakul (resigned on
10 November 2016), Viroj Sangsnit, Songkitti Jaggabatara, Itthaporn
Subhawong, Prasobsook Boondech and Cheng Yuk Wo participated
in continuous professional development by attending seminar
relevant to business or directors’ duties and responsibilities.
Messrs. Michael Ross and Yang Xiaoping participated in continuous
professional development by reading materials.

Securities Transactions by Directors/Officers

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all directors, they confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code.
Officers/employees deemed to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive or confidential information in relation to the Company
or its shares are required to prohibit from dealing in securities of the
Company in accordance with written guidelines.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal
During the year, there was no appointment of directors.

All newly appointed directors shall be briefed by the Company’s
lawyers about their duties and obligations as a director of a listed
company in Hong Kong.

The executive directors are not appointed for a specific term. The
independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of one
year, which is renewable. All the directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at general meetings of
the Company, in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles”).

Directors who are appointed by the Board must retire at the next
following general meeting/annual general meeting after their
appointments, but they are eligible for re-election at that general
meeting, and such election is separate from the normal retirement
of directors by rotation. According to the Articles, at least one-third
of the directors who have served the longest on the Board from last
re-election are required to retire by rotation at each annual general
meeting. The retiring directors are eligible for re-election at the
same annual general meeting.

TEERRES

e

WEALLE - HAMEERBBCEETIRE
ZEFR - WENHRBEEZES - BRIEL
ETEEARE WBEREERHBRCEEZ
BEARWPRELEEZERR - BRULBEEE
Sy AthESEMECHREFHEEFEHTE
ZEBEEHRERER -

AR CWEBNESERE_ZT—R"E+=A
ESt+-—HLEFEZEINRHE HEALE - F
BERE  BEMAE  RBELE - HRE
S~ HIER{Z %4 » Umroong Sanphasitvong
%4 - Piyawat Titasattavorakulft4 (R=F
—RE+—AB T HBE) - Viroj Sangsnitst
4 - Songkitti Jaggabatara’t 4 - Itthaporn
Subhawong’t &£ ~ Prasobsook Boondech’t
EREGMEEERBEFEREERIEEHEN
BRI ESHEEESERE BERIELER
BT EREFBHBEREER S HIGEDT £
E o

EE BRABEZEEREED

RARATRERMBEETUERESEERZTH
ZBRIFTH - EOMAESFHBARERR
HERACT2ETEETFRARE 2RE -
BRABERFEA R AHLERG 2 KA MHER
EHRIREEN2SRBE EE  BARE
EMESIZLEHARAZBHETRS °

ZE-EERER
RER  BEESEME-

FMHRECESKERNR T 2 EZMBAES
EAREBLHTARAESZHE -

HITESUEETEEH - BUFANTES2E
BHE—F (JEE) - TEESARBEAQFZ
AEBERAR (AR RESRRRAQFZ
BRERARE L EREE -

BESSZEES  AEBRIZAEERNERE
BRRAE RRBFARE LRME  BARZRK
RAELEEEARZERLI T A-—RES
ZWESER - REMA  BEO=pz—EF
BERELREZBRESSECEHERE A
REERREFAS LWESR REESET
TRE-RRAFAE EERBEFE-

C.P. Lotus Corporation |M&&7EH R



Corporate Governance Report

TEREBRES

BOARD AND OTHER COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
directors of the Company, Messrs. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman), Viroj
Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara with the purpose of monitoring
the integrity of the Group’s financial statements and provides
assurances to the Board that these comply with accounting
standards, stock exchange and legal requirements in relation to
financial reporting. The Audit Committee met twice in 2016 to review
work done by internal and external auditors, oversees financial
reporting system and internal control procedures. The Audit
Committee receives updates from Internal Audit and has dialogue
with senior management on their control responsibilities. The
written terms of reference of the Audit Committee is posted on the
Company’s website.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Group’s external auditors, Messrs. KPMG is set out as follows:

EEZEE
FREER

EREEEHAQIZNBIFHTES
R AN SE £ (EFE) » Viroj] Sangsnit®E £ &
Songkitti Jaggabatarafc £ A K 0 LEERARE
B HRccEEROEESRHERICE
TR EFE 2S5 % B R B A FrEE A
BER -BREEENR T —RFHITMAE
% WEB IR SMIE AL BIAD 2 TAER &5 R BE
BUEBRERAGERNBELERSF  BERZER
WEAEFBICERIESREREAERD
NHECEEEMR ERZESHEHES
£ YN o R

REBEFER AEEEN BAEIEZE
M-2EREFMEHEMMESEHINNT :

Fee Paid/Payable
B ENER
2016

—E-RF
(RMB’000)
(AR®BTT)

Fat R
H At AR %

Audit Services
Other Services

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Cheng Yuk
Wo (Chairman), Viroj Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara and
two executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont and Umroong Sanphasitvong. The main roles and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set out by the
Board with clearly defined written terms of reference is posted
on the Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for the formulation of the Group’s remuneration policies
and for the approval of remuneration packages for all directors
except that its members do not participate in the determination of
their own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee determines
the remuneration of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses,
incentive payment, share option, pension right and compensation
payment (including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment etc). The determination of
the Remuneration Committee should be made in consultation with
and taking recommendations from the Chairman of the Board and
other advisers as appropriate and submitted for endorsement by the
Board. The Remuneration Committee met once in 2016 to discharge
its duties. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in Note 6
to the financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive director
of the Company, Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive directors of the Company,
Messrs. Viroj Sangsnit and Cheng Yuk Wo. The main roles and
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include determining
and reviewing the nomination policy and Board diversity policy,
making recommendations to the structure, size and composition of
the Board at least annually, the appointment and re-appointment
of the directors and identify their suitabilities and to access the
independence of the independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee met once in 2016 to discharge its duties,
including assessing the independency of independent non-executive
directors under the guidelines of the Listing Rules and review the
Board diversity policy and terms of reference. The written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee is posted on the Company’s
website.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of two independent
non-executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Prasobsook
Boondech (Chairman) and Viroj Sangsnit and one executive
director of the Company, Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong. The main
roles and responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee
include reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) and written employee guidelines, and the
compliance with the Code Provisions. The Corporate Governance
Committee met once in 2016 to discharge the aforesaid duties. The
written terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee
is posted on the Company’s website.

SUMMARY OF BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

According to the Board diversity policy of the Company, selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to, gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service in the Company etc. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. Steady progress was made on achieving those
objectives.
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TEREBRES

INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for managing business and operational
risks and maintaining proper and effective systems of risk
management and internal control to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets against unauthorised
use or disposition. The Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Group has adopted
comprehensive procedures with duly assigned levels of authority
in areas of financial, operational controls, and risk management to
ensure that its assets and resources remain secure at all times.

The role of the Audit Committee is, through dialogue with
management, and the use of risk management and internal audit
functions to review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and to report to the Board any significant
risks and issues.

Risk Management function is responsible for analysing possible
risks that may affect the Group’s business operations; find
measures to eliminate, prevent and control risk. The Group has
invested in distribution centres and information technology systems
such as the store management system and the distribution centre
system. Information technology has played a major role in assisting
the Group to achieve higher efficiency in data storage and analysis.
Therefore, an error or problem in the information technology
systems will affect the Group’s ability to manage store operation
on a normal basis and may negatively affect the Group’s operating
performance.

The internal audit department is fully independent of business
operations. It has full and complete access to any of the Group’s
records, physical properties and personnel relevant to a review. The
authority of the department is defined by the Audit Committee and
reports administratively to the CEO and functionally to the Audit
Committee.

The Group has developed a risk management system “Enterprise
Risk Management System” in accordance with the international
standard ISO 31000 for strengthening the internal accountability
system on risk management. The system is an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks associated
with the business of the Group. Designated responsible personnel of
the relevant business unit is responsible to identify, assess, manage
the relevant risks covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and execute mitigation
measures. Results of risk evaluation will be reported to the Audit
Committee semi-annually through risk management function which
will continuously oversee the effectiveness of the risk management
system and ensure that the relevant control measures are properly
implemented within timeline. A risk management policy which sets
out the framework, guideline, procedures and action plan, was
adopted by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee.
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During the year of 2016, the Group had engaged an external advisor
to conduct an independent review of the risk management system
and to provide suggestion and solutions, which had been submitted
to the Audit Committee and the Board for their consideration.
In additions, internal audit function of the Group had carried out
internal control review on a regular basis and review on internal
control procedures to ensure that individual continuing connected
transactions are conducted in accordance with the pricing policies
or mechanism under the relevant framework agreements. It is
responsible for evaluating the effectiveness of procedures in relation
to risk management and internal control systems and submitting
their reports of their findings to the Audit Committee annually. The
Board regularly receives and reviews monthly updates giving an
overall assessment of the Company’s business performance.

The Audit Committee provides independent review on effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and gives their recommendation to the Board. The Board is
responsible for reviewing the internal audit report and approving
policies and procedures designed by the management. The Board
believes that the existing risk management and internal control
systems are adequate and effective. The Board also reviewed the
resources, qualification and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
schemes and budget and was satisfied with their adequacy.

The objective of operation audit is to provide an independent
and objective evaluation of the quality and effectiveness of store
operations including risk management and internal controls
established by the management. Each store has to go through
a monthly detailed inspection of key operating activities such as
cash movement, goods receiving, claims and payments. Storewide
physical counts are carried out at least once a year. The operation
audit department reports to the Chief Financial Officer.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs. Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Regarding the procedures and internal control for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
and has complied with its disclosure obligations under the Listing
Rules and Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“Inside Information Provisions”). And any information required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules and/or the Inside
Information Provisions would be announced timely.
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TEREBRES

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 72 and 73 of the Articles, general meetings can
be convened on the written requisition of any two members of the
Company deposited at the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists.

Any extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called by notice in writing of not less
than a period which is the longer of twenty-one days and ten clear
business days, and any other extraordinary general meeting shall
be called by notice in writing of not less than a period which is the
longer of fourteen days and ten clear business days. The notice
shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed to
be served and of the day for which it is given, and shall specify
the place, the day and the hour of meeting and, in case of special
business (as defined in Article 75 of the Articles), particulars of
the resolutions to be considered at the meeting, and shall be
given in manner hereinafter mentioned or in such other manner, if
any, as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting to
such persons as are, under these Articles, entitled to receive such
notices from the Company provided that a meeting of the Company
notwithstanding that it is called by shorter notice than that specified
in this Article be deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed
by a majority in number of the members having a right to attend and
vote at the meeting, being a majority together holding not less than
ninety-five per cent in nominal value of the shares giving that right.

Shareholders’ enquiries put to the Board or any proposals
to be put forward at general meetings can be emailed to
contact@cplotuscorp.com or by mail to:

C.P. Lotus Corporation

21/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

Effective communication with shareholders and investors and the
provision of high standards of disclosure and financial transparency
have always been one of the Group’s priorities. A number of formal
communication channels are available to shareholders for the
performance of the Group including the annual and interim report
and the press release and announcements. Annual general meeting
and other general meetings provide a useful opportunity for the
Board to maintain a constructive dialogue with our shareholders.

The Group is committed to maintain continuing open dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts as a means of developing their
understanding of our strategy, operations, management and plans
and raising any issues they may have and provide the Group with
valuable feedbacks and insights.

The Company has its company website http://www.cplotuscorp.com

which provides additional channel for shareholders and interested
parties to access the Group’s information.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2016
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESERHE

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 53, is Executive Director and
Chairman of the Company and has been an Executive Director
since 2000. He has been a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
of the Company since 1 April 2012. Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in the College of Business
and Public Administration of New York University, USA and has
extensive multinational investment and management experience in
various industries. He is an executive director and Vice Chairman
of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd., a non-executive director and the
Chairman and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of Chia
Tai Enterprises International Limited and a non-executive director
of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd., which are
companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is also a director of True
Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL Public Company
Limited and Siam Makro Public Company Limited, all of which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand. He is the Chairman of
True Visions Public Company Limited. He is also the Chairman of
Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited with effect from 9
January 2017.

Mr. Li Wen Hai, aged 59, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as Vice
Chairman of the Company with effect from 18 April 2008 and
re-designated as Senior Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 22 October 2013. He ceased
to be Senior Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and was
re-designated as Executive Chairman of the Company with effect
from 1 December 2015. Mr. Li obtained a Master degree in Business
Administration from Huazhong Normal University, PRC and is a
senior economist. He has extensive experience in retail business.

Mr. Narong Chearavanont, aged 52, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2001. He was re-designated as
Vice Chairman of the Company in September 2006. He obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from New
York University, USA, Certificate of Advance Management Program
in Transforming Proven Leaders into Global Executives from
Harvard Business School, Harvard University, USA and an Honorary
Doctorate degree of Business Administration from Ramkamhaeng
University, Thailand. Mr. Narong Chearavanont has extensive
experience in the retail and trading industries. He is a director of
True Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL Public Company
Limited and Siam Makro Public Company Limited, all of which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand.
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Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed, aged 54, has been an Executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Company since 1 April 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor degree from the University of Chicago,
USA and a Master degree from the Sloan School of Management,
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA. Mr. Chan was a
Regional Director North Asia of the Diary Farm Group and a director
of Dairy Farm Management Services Limited from November 2001
to November 2006. He was the President and Chief Executive
Officer of Walmart China from November 2006 to October 2011.
Mr. Chan is currently a Vice Chairman of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited. He is also a non-executive director of Treasury
Wine Estates Limited, a company listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange and an independent non-executive director of Link Real
Estate Investment Trust, which is listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Yum China Holdings, Inc., which is listed
on the New York Stock Exchange.

Mr. Michael Ross, aged 52, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since September 2006. He was re-designated
as Executive Vice Chairman of the Company with effect from
1 May 2008 and ceased to hold such position with effect from
1 September 2010. Mr. Ross was re-designated as Vice Chairman of
the Company with effect from 1 January 2012. He obtained a Master
degree in Science from University of Salford, United Kingdom and
a Bachelor degree in Hospitality Management from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, Hong Kong. He completed an Executive
Program at the Kennedy School of Government of Harvard
University in USA in 2009. He has extensive experience in retail
business. Since joining Lotus Supercenter in 1999, he has served
in major key positions in Business Development, Operations and
Merchandising. During this period, Mr. Ross also served as Regional
President in Southern Region & Eastern Region of Lotus. Mr. Ross
has been a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (CPPCC) Shanghai Pudong New Area Committee since
June 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESERHE

Mr. Yang Xiaoping, aged 53, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since April 2000. He was re-designated as Vice
Chairman of the Company with effect from 14 May 2007 and ceased
to hold such position with effect from 1 September 2010. Mr. Yang
was re-designated as Vice Chairman of the Company with effect
from 1 January 2012. He has more than 20 years’ of extensive
experience in international trading and investment in the PRC and
has good contact with central, provincial and municipal governors.
Mr. Yang is a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd. and CITIC Limited, both of which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited, a
company listed on the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 58, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2005. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Occidental College, California, USA and a Master
degree in Business Administration from New York University, USA.
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont has extensive experience in investment,
finance, banking and strategic business development in Asia and
USA. He is currently a non-executive director of C.P. Pokphand Co.
Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. He is currently also the Senior Executive
Assistant to the Chairman-Finance of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 50, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2000. He obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from Boston University
in USA, majoring in Financial Management. Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont has extensive experience in the telecommunication
and broadcasting industries. He is an executive director of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a director, President and
Chief Executive Officer of True Corporation Public Company Limited
and a director of Siam Makro Public Company Limited, both of
which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand. Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont is also a director and Chief Executive Officer of
True Visions Public Company Limited and True Move Company
Limited. He is also the Chief Executive Officer (Telecommunications)
of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited with effect from
9 January 2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong, aged 64, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company in December 2006 and August 2016,
respectively. He obtained a Bachelor and a Master degree in
Accounting from Thammasat University, Thailand and has extensive
experience in financial management. Mr. Sanphasitvong is currently
a director of True Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL
Public Company Limited and Siam Makro Public Company Limited,
all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand, and of
CPPC Public Company Limited. He is also the Deputy Group Chief
Financial Officer of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited.

Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul, aged 63, was an Executive Director
of the Company from 1 September 2010 to 10 November 2016.
He obtained a Bachelor Degree majoring in Marketing from
Ramkhamhaeng University, Thailand. He has extensive experience
in the marketing and retail business. Mr. Titasattavorakul is a
director of CP ALL Public Company Limited and Siam Makro Public
Company Limited, both of which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Thailand.

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit, aged 81, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company since 1999. He is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He was appointed
as a member of the Nomination Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company with effect from 1 April
2012 and 20 August 2016 respectively. Mr. Sangsnit was the Deputy
Minister of Transport from 1991 to 1992 and the Deputy of Minister
of Defense in 1996 in Thailand.

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara, aged 66, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company since 1 April 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the Chulachomklao
Royal Military Academy, Thailand and graduated from National
Defence College of Thailand. Mr. Jaggabatara served in the Royal
Thai Armed Forces for 39 years and was appointed as Chief of
Defence Forces of the Royal Thai Armed Forces in 2008. He retired
from the Royal Thai Armed Forces on 30 September 2011. Mr.
Jaggabatara is currently an Advisor to Kasetphand Industry Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited.
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Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong, aged 65, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 31 December
2012. He graduated from National Defence College of Thailand.
Mr. Subhawong served in the Royal Thai Air Force (“RTAF”) for
37 years and was appointed as Air Chief Marshal of the RTAF in
2007. He was appointed the 21st Commander-in-Chief of the RTAF
on 1 October 2008. Mr. Subhawong retired as Commander-in-Chief
of the RTAF on 30 September 2012.

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech, aged 71, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 31 December
2012. He has been appointed as the Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee with effect from 20 August 2016. He
obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from Thammasat University,
Thailand. Mr. Boondech was admitted as Barrister-at-Law, Institute
of Legal Education, Thai Bar Association, Thailand in 1967 and
Barrister-at-Law, Lincoln’s Inn, England in 1972. He has extensive
experience in the legal field and is a lecturer on Family Law, Faculty
of Law, Chulalongkorn University and Institute of Legal Education,
Thai Bar Association, Thailand. Mr. Boondech was the President of
the Senate of Thailand from 2008 to 2011.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 56, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Company since 2004. He was a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and became its
Chairman on 1 April 2012, when he also became a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a
Master of Science (Economics) degree, majoring in Accounting and
Finance from London School of Economics, England and a Bachelor
of Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting from University of Kent,
England. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years’ of expertise
in accounting, finance and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Cheng is currently an independent non-executive director of
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited, CSI Properties Limited,
Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited, Goldbond
Group Holdings Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, DTXS Silk Road
Investment Holdings Company Limited, Top Spring International
Holdings Limited and Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, all of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited and Somerley Capital Holdings
Limited, companies listed on the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. He was an independent non-executive
director of Imagi International Holdings Limited listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from July 2010
to January 2016.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Through its
subsidiaries, the Company is principally engaged in the operation of
large scale hypermarket stores located in the northern, southern and
eastern parts of China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 is set out in “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 64 of
the financial statements.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year (2015: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$2,358,326,000 (equivalent to RMB2,095,109,000) (2015:
HK$2,276,932,000 (equivalent to RMB2,021,958,000)) as computed
in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest

customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to RMB3,000 (2015: RMB4,000).
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Report of the Directors

EEWRES

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
Mr. Li Wen Hai

Mr. Narong Chearavanont
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed
Mr. Michael Ross

Mr. Yang Xiaoping

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul (Resigned on 10 November 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont,
Umroong Sanphasitvong, Viroj Sangsnit and Cheng Yuk Wo, will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).
Details of the directors proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming
AGM are set out in the relevant circular to be despatched to the
shareholders of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a term of one year, which is renewable and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), and considers that all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance, in
which a director of the Company or an entity connected with a
director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2016, the directors were not aware that any of
the directors had interests in any business apart from the Group’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group which falls to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:

(i) Long positions in shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

shares held ERE

Name of directors EEEB BFERGEE BRBEGLE
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEALE 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Narong Chearavanont MR EE 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BN EEE 183,240,198 1.66%
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HRBREE 61,080,066 0.55%
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont Bk e 122,160,132 1.11%
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvongt 4 61,080,066 0.55%

C.P. Lotus Corporation |M&&7EH R



Report of the Directors

EEWRES

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

(ii) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

EERBETHRAEREKRS -
BEROREEETFHEEZERR
KE (&)

(i) AEBLIEFRZRH

Approximate
percentage of

Name of associated Number of shareholding
Name of directors corporations shares held ERE
EEER HEEEEE BERGOHE BMABEML
Mr. Li Wen Hai Kinghill Limited 171,428 0.05%
THEHBEE
Mr. Yang Xiaoping Kinghill Limited 171,428 0.05%
BNERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had any interest or
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
substantial shareholders and other persons, other than a director or
chief executive of the Company, in shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company: REQXTHFRE 2B MG
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Notes shares held BFREMY
Name of shareholders REER M & BERGHAE B
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment
Company Limited (“CPH”) Company Limited ([CPH]J) (1) 18,083,521,003 164.11%
Worth Access Trading Limited Worth Access Trading Limited
(“Worth Access”) ([Worth Access]) (1) 18,083,521,003 164.11%
CPG Overseas Company Limited CPG Overseas Company Limited
(“CPG Overseas”) (TCPG Overseas]) (1) 18,083,521,003 164.11%
Charoen Pokphand Group Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”) Company Limited ([ CPG ) (1) 18,450,001,399 167.44%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Worth Access had declared an interest in the same 18,083,521,003
shares in which CPH had declared an interest by virtue of Worth
Access’ shareholding in CPH. CPG Overseas had declared an interest
in the same 18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding
in Worth Access. CPG had declared an interest in the same
18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding in CPG Overseas
and an interest in 366,480,396 shares by virtue of its shareholding in a
subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
substantial shareholders and other persons, other than a director or
chief executive of the Company, had any interest or short positions
in shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, “Connected Transaction” and notes 30 and 31 to
the financial statements, no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) was in force for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2016.
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EEWRES

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy and long-term incentive schemes
of the Group are set out in “Employees, training and remuneration
policy” on page 14 of this annual report.

The emolument payable to any director of the Company was
determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities within
the Group and his anticipated time and effort to be spent on the
Company’s matters.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by shareholders of the Company
on 31 May 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) expired on 30 May 2012. The
shareholders of the Company approved the termination of the Old
Scheme and the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) in place of the Old Scheme at the annual general meeting
of the Company on 22 June 2012. All the share options granted
under the Old Scheme were exercised.

No share options were granted under the New Scheme since its
adoption.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Scheme” above,
neither the Company nor any of its holding companies or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December 2016, the total convertible preference shares of
the Company in issue included 1,518,807,075 Series A convertible
preference shares, 3,897,110,334 Series B convertible preference
shares, 3,671,509,764 Series C convertible preference shares and
2,211,382,609 Series D convertible preference shares.

1,518,807,075 Series A convertible preference shares were issued
on 31 October 2008 pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement dated
17 May 2007 as part of the consideration for the acquisition of
subsidiaries. Details are set out in the circular dated 29 June 2007.

3,897,110,334 Series B convertible preference shares were issued
on 30 June 2010 pursuant to the Agreement dated 16 March 2010
to redeem the convertible bonds issued by the Company at the
aggregate principle amount of HK$1,519,873,031. Details are set
out in the circular dated 1 April 2010.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

3,673,765,764 Series C convertible preference shares were issued
on 23 December 2011 pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement
dated 14 October 2011 and the Open Offer as set out in the
prospectus dated 2 December 2011. Net proceeds from the
issue of Series C convertible preference shares amounted to
HK$805,056,000. Up to 31 December 2016, a total of 2,256,000
Series C convertible preference shares were converted to ordinary
shares.

2,211,382,609 Series D convertible preference shares were issued
on 1 January 2012 pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement dated 14
October 2011 as the consideration for the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Details are set out in the circular dated 1 November 2011.

The holders of these preference shares have the right to convert
any preference share into the Company’s ordinary shares at any
time at the conversion ratio of 1 to 1 each subject to the minimum
public float requirement under the Listing Rules. Adjustments to
the conversion price are only made upon dilutive and other events
which are related to the Company issuing new shares or convertible
debts.

Save as disclosed above and the section “Share Option Scheme”,
no equity-linked agreement was entered into or subsisted during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF
LISTING RULES

On 29 November 2011, the Company entered into an agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) with a group of banks in Thailand pursuant
to the terms and subject to the conditions of which, the Company
was granted a term loan facility of US$28 million (the “Syndicated
Bank Loan”), the principal outstanding amount of which is required
to be repaid by 12 installments commencing in June 2013 up to and
until December 2018. Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would
be an event of default thereunder if the controlling shareholder of
the Company, CPH fails to legally and beneficially own (directly
or indirectly) at least 51% of the total issued and paid up ordinary
shares in the Company. Please refer to the announcement dated
29 November 2011 for details of the Facility Agreement. The
Syndicated Bank Loan had been fully repaid by part of the loan
proceeds derived from the Shareholder’s Loans.

For details of the Shareholder’s Loans, please refer to the
announcement of the Company issued on 21 December 2016 and
note 20 to the financial statements.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont has been appointed as the Chairman
of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited with effect from 9
January 2017.

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont has been appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer (Telecommunications) of Charoen Pokphand
Group Company Limited with effect from 9 January 2017

Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Yum China Holdings, Inc. with effect from
November 2016, which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul resigned as executive director of the
Company on 10 November 2016.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (“Mr. Cheng”) has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Miricor Enterprises Holdings
Limited with effect from 19 December 2016, a company listed on
the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on 10 January 2017. Mr. Cheng has also been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Somerley Capital Holdings
Limited with effect from 9 March 2017, a company listed on the
GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
28 March 2017.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Disposal of Equity Interest

On 28 April 2016, Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Lianyuan
Logistics”), L'8E LEEEE AR AT (“SH Xi Shang Wu”) and
C.P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. (“CPL Corporate
Management”) entered into the equity transfer agreement with Chia
Tai Land Company Limited (“CT Land”), a connected person of the
Company, whereby Lianyuan Logistics, SH Xi Shang Wu and CPL
Corporate Management agreed to transfer all of their respective
equity interests in Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods Co., Ltd. (“CP Xi
Duo Wu”) to CT Land at the total consideration of RMB8,125,000.

Lianyuan Logistics and CPL Corporate Management are indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, which owns 75% and
5% equity interests in CP Xi Duo Wu respectively. The consideration
to transfer their interests in CP Xi Duo Wu was RMB6,094,000 and
RMB406,000 respectively.

CPG was interested in approximately 64.93% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 28 April 2016, and was therefore
the controlling shareholder of the Company. As CT Land was an
indirect subsidiary of CPG, CT Land was a connected person of
the Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules. Details of the
transaction were set out in the announcement dated 28 April 2016.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Purchase and Supply Agreements

On 25 November 2013, the Company entered into the 2014
Purchase Agreement with High Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”)
to purchase certain merchandise from HOEL or any of the HOEL
Related Entities (as defined in that agreement) for the term from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

On 25 November 2013, the Company entered into the 2014 Supply
Agreement with Whole Sino Limited (“WSL”) under which any
subsidiaries of the Company would supply certain merchandise
to WSL or any of the WSL Related Entities (as defined in that
agreement) for the term from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

Leases and Sub-leases

On 26 May 2008, Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (“Kunshan
Tailian”) and Kunshan Xinmin Property Co., Ltd. (EILEBEME
BFR2AT]) (“Kunshan Ximin”) entered into a lease (the “Kunshan
Lease”) in relation to a property located at West side of North
Changjiang Road, Zhoushi Town, Kunshan, the PRC, with an area of
approximately 29,466 square meters for the term from 26 May 2008
to 24 November 2024. On 15 December 2014, Shanghai Kinghill Ltd.
(5% RBREABRAT) (“Shanghai Kinghill”) acquired 100% equity
interest in Kunshan Xinmin.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Leases and Sub-leases (Continued)

On 31 October 2008, Hefei Ailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (“Hefei
Ailian”) and Tongshan Development & Management (Hefei) Co., Ltd.
(WILEX£EREE (G8) BR2AF) (“Tongshan Enterprise”) entered
into a lease (the “Hefei Lease”) in relation to a property located at
Southeast Corner, Junction of He’an Road and Furong Road, Hefei
Economic & Technological Development Area, Hefei, the PRC, with
an area of approximately 23,100 square meters for the term from
1 November 2008 to 17 March 2025. The Hefei Lease Assignment
Agreement taken effect from 1 April 2014 was entered into among
Hefei Ailian, Tongshan Enterprise and Anhui Zhengtong Enterprises
Co., Ltd. (ZBEREXER D T) (“Anhui Zhengtong”) to assign the
Hefei Lease from Tongshan Enterprise to Anhui Zhengtong.

Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“Shantou
Lotus”) and Ping An Trust Co., Ltd. (FZEstEREFE2F) (“Ping
An Trust”) entered into a lease (the “Shantou Lease”) in relation to
a property located at Feng Ze Zhuang, Changping Road, Longhu
District, Shantou, the PRC, with an area of approximately 20,400
square meters for the term from 12 December 2005 to 11 December
2025. The Shantou Lease was subsequently revised and assumed
by JIEMEFREBHAERLDT (“Xinping Investment”) as lessor on
1 December 2013. On 5 March 2015, Shanghai Kinghill acquired
100% equity interest in Xinping Investment.

On 25 November 2013, Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store
Co., Ltd. (“SLS”) and Shanghai Kinghill entered into a lease (the
“2014 Super Brand Mall Lease”) in relation to a portion of the Super
Brand Mall situated at No. 168 Lujiazui Xi Road, Pudong New
District, Shanghai, the PRC, with a total floor area of approximately
13,500 square meters for the monthly rental of RMB1,500,000,
equivalent to an annual rental of RMB18,000,000 for the term from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

On 15 December 2014, SLS and Chia Tai Commercial Real Estate
Management Co., Ltd. (EAEEEHEEEFRAE) (“CTCREM”)
entered into a sub-lease (the “2015 SLS Sub-Lease”), for the term
from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2016, for a monthly rent of
RMB555,750, equivalent to an annual rent of RMB6,669,000 from
1 May 2015 to 31 December 2016, plus (i) a commission of 5% on
the excess of subletting rental income received by CTCREM over
the rent receivable by SLS under the 2015 SLS Sub-Lease; and
(i) a commission of 15% on the advertising and promotion income
received by CTCREM derived from the property located at No. 2128
Yang Gao Zhong Lu, Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC, with
an area of approximately 6,527 square meters.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Leases and Sub-leases (Continued)

Kunshan Tailian, Hefei Ailian, Shantou Lotus and SLS are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC.

CPG is interested in approximately 64.93% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and is therefore the controlling shareholder
of the Company.

As each of Anhui Zhengtong, Kunshan Xinmin, Shanghai Kinghill,
CTCREM and HOEL is also an indirect subsidiary of CPG, Anhui
Zhengtong, Kunshan Xinmin, Shanghai Kinghill, CTCREM and HOEL
are connected persons of the Company for the purposes of the
Listing Rules.

As WSL was wholly-owned by a company which was, at the time
when the 2014 Supply Agreement was entered into and as at
January 2016, directly held as to 51.31% of its issued share capital
by the four members of the Chearavanont family, namely Mr.
Jaran Chiaravanont, Mr. Montri Jiaravanont, Mr. Sumet Jiaravanon
and Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (together, the “Chearavanont
Shareholders”), in aggregate, WSL was then an associate of
the Chearavanont Shareholders and a connected person of the
Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under each of the Kunshan Lease,
the Hefei Lease, the Shantou Lease, the 2014 Super Brand
Mall Lease and the 2015 SLS Sub-Lease constituted continuing
connected transactions exempt from independent shareholders’
approval but were subject to reporting and announcement
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the 2014 Purchase Agreement
and the 2014 Supply Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company within the meaning of
the Listing Rules and they were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company on 20 December 2013 and 30 April
2014.

Details of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
are set out in the announcements dated 25 November 2013, 14
March 2014, 15 December 2014 and 6 March 2015 and the circulars
dated 5 December 2013 and 4 April 2014.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Leases and Sub-leases (Continued)

The actual transactions and approved annual caps for the
abovementioned continuing connected transaction agreements
during the year from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016 are as
follows:
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Approved
Actual Annual Caps
Transactions EHEE
BEBEXS LEBR
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTR
Non-exempt continuing connected TEHEIFERZE
transaction agreements: XEH#E
2014 Purchase Agreement —E-NERBHE 69,995 187,700
2014 Supply Agreement —E-NFEHERE 130,956 1,595,900
Exempt continuing connected transaction — JEZLF jFiEE#
agreements: XEHE
Kunshan Lease ELHAERHZE 7,938 N/A
Hefei Lease SEEERHZ 2,096 N/A
Shantou Lease o\ 58 7E & 1 14,880 N/A
2014 Super Brand Mall Lease —E-NFEEXRESHERE 18,000 18,000
2015 SLS Sub-Lease TE-LFELBERSEHE 7,337 8,500

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements (HKSAE) 3000 “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Company in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions were entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.
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Report of the Directors

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of
Association or laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is
incorporated.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed internal control and financial reporting
matters, including the review of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

Messrs. KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
KPMG as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Soopakij Chearavanont
Director

Hong Kong, 23 February 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Independent auditor’s report to the

shareholders of C.P. Lotus Corporation
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P. Lotus
Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set
out on pages 64 to 141, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

L=

FARETEE(E)

Assessment of going concern

FREE TG

Refer to note 1(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

FBHEE R BEEMTI1D)

The Key Audit Matter
ERETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMHWETNAEREZSE

The Group incurred a loss of RMB537.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and had net current
liabilities of RMB1,825.0 million as at that date.
BE-Z-—XR"F+-A=+—-HLFE BXEBENESR
A AR¥537,600,000nt R AZAZREBEEFEAAR
#%1,825,000,0007T °

The Group finances its operations and expansion
plans through a combination of operating cash flows
generated from sales of merchandise and leasing store
premises and loans from banks and its controlling
shareholder.

EXREUEREE HEERYERRTRERRRER
HEELENEEESFALEENRERAS ZER -

Based on the cash flow forecast of the Group for
the twelve-month period ending 31 December 2017
prepared by the directors and unutilised financing
facilities on hand, the directors have concluded that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

B EEEEEHREBE-_ZT-—tF+-A=+—-HL
TZEAPEBcRERERRRBRERERAZREREE
¥ EBEEESTAUSEREERFERASHBRE
BeE -

Our audit procedures to assess the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern assumption
in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements included the following:
BMEIHEEBUSECEERGRESHERE
REREER BT TUTENER:

° walking through the business planning process
and assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key
internal controls over the assessment of going
concern, including the preparation of cash flow
forecasts;

. HEBRBARBERFTRE - UFEERBNT
HEFEKE (BREGRASRERAR KNERRK
BIZHERE  BRMRELHBERE

o comparing the future expected cash flows in the
cash flow forecast with the Group’s business
plan approved by the board of directors;

o BREREFHPHRRFERREREHE BEEEH
EESMENEB YL
° comparing the key assumptions adopted by

management in preparing the cash flow forecast,
including revenue and lease income, turnover
days for inventories and trade payables, store
opening plans and relevant capital expenditure,
with historical data and assessing whether any
material variations were consistent with our
expectations based on our understanding of the
Group’s business;

. HEBEEGRURSREARSRANBRER
(BREBRAMESHRA EFMEMRRBEXE
FIESTBIMAEEARASTE) @ HELBIBIFLER
TWRBEHRME BEEXBNTH FEHBEEEKR
EEREBHEHRMOTES

° assessing the sensitivities of the cash flow
forecast by considering plausible changes to the
key assumptions adopted by management and
considering the resulting impact on the going
concern assumption;

. REBEEERMANBERBRNSEZE » THEH
ERARBNBRZE  AERHFECLERRELEN
2 ¥
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

Assessment of going concern (Continued)

FEKSENTME (E)

The Key Audit Matter
BREITSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANETOAEEZSE

We identified the assessment of going concern as a
key audit matter because the assessment of going
concern is dependent upon certain management
assumptions and judgements, in particular in relation to
the future cash flows to be generated from operations
and the ability of the Group to renew or obtain
financing facilities as and when necessary.
?ﬁﬁ‘iﬂﬂ%ﬁ?«féZQHEJQ%IJ?%E%@%*?IE B R EA
ENFABRNELERBNEBRRMNALE  LEREEE
L/EEJJFEZ*HUEQWEU\& EEENZTERERN
HMERMEFEZED -

° considering the likelihood of a breach of any
condition as set out in debt facility agreements
occurring and the consequent effect on the cash
flow forecast;

. MERFHAREITOFEZEREERER

& i qﬂiﬂmﬁ’ﬁ:‘tﬁﬂ%#ﬁ’ﬁj’ﬁ‘éﬁ  REBRESR
SR L:0Z 3N
° obtaining written confirmations from banks and

related parties in respect of the existence and
terms of existing debt facilities available during
the twelve-month period ending 31 December

2017; and

. REBE-E-—tF+-A=+—BLE+ZEAHH
Wﬁﬁ‘]ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁ&ﬂ%?ﬂ mEER/TFIAERI A =
WMEEERR R

° considering the disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements in respect of the directors’
assessment of the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting

standards.
. SBRTEHEANER %FE%EA%AEM%%E
xHERE BEENUBELEREREER N 2T

R E -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

e

FARETEE(E)

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill

BB R E R AT E

Refer to note 11 and the accounting policies set out in notes 1(g) and 1(|)(ii) to the consolidated financial

statements.

BB SR IR AE11 R M i 1(g)82

10)(i) BT & BY B 5 B R ©

The Key Audit Matter
BREENSHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWESNETEEZEE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s goodwill, which
amounted to RMB 2,654.3 million, was allocated
to three groups of cash-generating units (“CGUs”),
representing the East, South, and North China Regions.

EQZE—}—\E‘I'ZHE‘I'—EI‘ EEECHERBARYE
2,654,300,0007t ' P ELEZEER - EFEEEIMEZ=E
WEEEEN( FIE%FE g )48 o

An annual impairment assessment of goodwill is
performed by management. The recoverable amounts
of the assets allocated to each group of CGUs are
determined by management based on value in use
calculations. As the performance of the Group’s
business operations in the East China Region did not
meet the target, the Group recognised impairment of
goodwill in the amount of RMB257.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
EEEHREBETFERNENE EEERBEIETEA
iﬁﬁ%iﬁ&iﬁ%E’\MEFHE{EW%EHEM&@%%E °
MR EEEERBEXBRAREEIER BE=F
—ANFTZAZT-HLFE X EXEERIFERES
AR #257,500,0007T °

The value in use was estimated by preparing
discounted cash flow forecasts. The preparation of
discounted cash flow forecasts involves the exercise
of significant management judgement, in particular in
forecasting future revenue, future gross profit margins
and future store operating and administrative expenses
and in determining the long-term growth rates and
discount rates applied.
FREERBARRURBSREFEMRMEEN - BHIRER
EREEBRNERIREBBERNHE » 1SR
REWA ~ RREFMEMARREHEENEEER - UK
BERMBREMBERE

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of

goodwill included the following:

BEPRAFABEEERERMATUTEREFERE

° evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the amounts of goodwill and assets
allocated to each group of CGUs;

o A EEEHREELAEUNBIUR I BRESE
ReELEUNBENEESE

° using our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the methodology used
by management in the preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

. BEMEABEEERNHYP TSRATEHAER 2

RE AAEEBEERAUBRREDEFARESIE
BWTEE
° comparing the significant inputs used in the

discounted cash flow forecasts, including future
revenue, future gross profit margins and future
store operating and administrative expenses
with the relevant data in the financial budgets
approved by the board of directors, industry
reports and agreements signed subsequent to
the reporting date;

. BHHERRESREARTFERANERREAE (BHER
RBA - AREFNEZMAREEREEER)HE

ESEHENMBESE « TERENRE QPRI
915 R AEESLE S
° comparing the significant inputs used in

discounted cash flow forecasts prepared in the
prior year with the current year’s performance to
assess how accurate the prior year’s discounted
cash flow forecasts were and making enquiries
of management as to the reasons for any
significant variations identified;

. HEFHFRUGERREREFBMAEANBERE AR
BEARFEEEFEL  UFGEFHRRARERETE
BNEREE YO EERBHEBAZEZEENRER ;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

8 & R (E B R4S ()

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BREENSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RPN ESTNAEEZEE

We identified assessing potential impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessment prepared by management is complex
and involves a significant degree of judgement in
determining the assumptions, particularly the long term
growth rates and the discount rates applied, and could
be subject to management bias.
BEMETEBENELTRERNRBERETSIE  BRAE
EEMEANBETEREMN  TREBRRF(LAER
PR RBEREMBERR) S REAHE L ATEE
EEENROMBRTE -

° assessing the long-term growth rate and
discount rate used in the discounted cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar
retailers;

o ZHRYHLLHMEAEZERNRE  FHBRRER
EERPEANRBIEREMARE ;

° obtaining sensitivity analyses of the key
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash
flow forecasts prepared by management
and considering the resulting impact on the
impairment charges for the year and whether
there were any indicators of management bias;
and

. BSEEEERRURRENEARSEHIERAN
BRBEREGENHBMEIN  LEERALHARFE
BEBEMEENTEURREFEEERERON
/%" S N

° considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of goodwill, including the key
assumptions and sensitivities to changes in such
assumptions, with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.

. SRATEAEUZRE  ZREEYBHRERTE
EEEREMENEE  ERERBRRREZER
REBHBMLEDAN -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

w

FARETEE(E)

Potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of certain of the Group’s

stores

ETERNYE FENRBEURELEENETREMNTMG

Refer to notes 9, 10 and 11 and the accounting policies set out in notes 1(i), 1(j) and 1(l)(iij) to the consolidated

financial statements.

EEHGESBERENTI  10R 11U RBIEE16) ~ 10)8210)(i) BT & B9 & 51 H % °

The Key Audit Matter
ERESSBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNEFTNMEEZER

Certain stores of the Group have sustained losses
from operations or have experienced decreasing
store turnover or decreasing gross cash flows from
operations for at least three consecutive years.

MR BEEEETERBELLEFR IXKELELE
BFRBEXFRIBBRENALD ©

Management considers that these factors are the
indicators of potential impairment whereby there is
a risk that the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (which represent
favourable lease interests) of certain of the Group’s
stores may not be recoverable in full through the future
cash flows to be generated from trading operations of
these stores or from disposal of these assets.
EEERRUDEERENTR Bt ZZEH2ZY
X FERKBRELEE (AEFNHEERR) WREE
B FEUEELBBZSEHELCHIERELEMEEN
RRBEREBFUZHWE MR -

Management reviews the performance of individual
stores at the end of each reporting period to identify
stores for which indicators of impairment exist.
REEARSHR  EEERNIREMAEE  UEHNE
WERR & e

For those stores where indicators of impairment were
identified, the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets attributable to
these stores is determined by management based on
value in use calculations on a store-by-store basis.
In determining the value in use of these assets,
discounted cash flow forecasts were prepared by
management for each store for which indicators of
impairment were identified.

MREBRBERETFRZEH EEESRESREEEH
NWEREEFEYE - FERRBEUARELEENTHRD
BHE EEEASRCBIINBERETRR 2 EHAEHNERR
EREWER UETHFEREE-

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
certain of the Group’s stores included the following:
BPRHE SEEEETHERNDE BFEEARBIAR
BREEENEERERFAATHENRFEHE

. challenging the Group’s impairment assessment
model by assessing the impairment indicators
identified by management and considering
whether the discounted cash flow forecasts on
a store-by-store basis supported the carrying
value of the relevant assets. We also considered
whether the assessment indicated that a reversal
of a past impairment was necessary;

. FRFEEBEIENNAETRRERGRMEHEE
HELMNERBSRERAAREXFHEBEENER
HEE ¥ SEENHEFHEXNRZHERSE X
ZRZIAERETERBERREE

° using our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the methodology used
by management in the preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

. EMEABGEEERNHYHSRBRTEHAELN 2R
%fiﬁ%ﬁ@&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm

° comparing the most significant inputs used in
the discounted cash flow forecasts, including
future growth rates in revenue, future gross
margins and future store operating and
administrative expenses, with the historical
performance of these stores, store budgets
approved by store management, industry reports
and agreements signed subsequent to the
reporting date;

. HHERRERERRDEANERREAE (BFEXR
RPARBRE - RREFRMARREHEENEE
EA)EZEEHNBERR EEBEHENTE
AE - TEREMNBEPRETNHREHLL
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BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

stores (Continued)

Potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of certain of the Group’s

ETERNYE FENRBURELEENETRENTMG (H)

The Key Audit Matter
BRESSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPWESNAEEZEE

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, particularly in estimating future growth
rates in revenue, future gross margins and future
store operating and administrative expenses and in
determining the discount rates applied.
HRREREFEBRNERAIREEBEANAE  LH2
ERFARRBRABRER - RREFZ - RREHEEHRE
BER URETEBMNBRE-

We identified the potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets of certain
of the Group’s stores as a key audit matter because
determining the indicators of impairment and the level
of impairment, if any, involves a significant degree of
management judgement, particularly in forecasting
future cash flows and estimating the recoverable
amounts of these assets, both of which are inherently
uncertain and could be subject to management bias.
BMEEEETHERNYE FENRBURELEE
WEERERNABEESSER  ARAEREREFRM
BEKF (WA K SRIEEESENFERED  LH
ERARKRBEREBMETZEEENTROHE  mE
BARETREMN BRI EBRENROLS °

comparing the most significant inputs used in
the discounted cash flow forecasts prepared
in the prior year with the current year’s
performance of these stores to assess the
accuracy of the prior year’s discount cash flow
forecasts and enquiring of management for any
significant variations identified;
EREFHFRENBRBSREFAIPEANERE
ANEHEZEEREFNEE UM EFRRARE
MBI ERYE  YNEREARENEREZEEN
BR ;

assessing the discount rates used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts, by benchmarking
against other similar retailers;
FEBHHEHMBEZESRNEE  THBREAESR
EERPEANMEE;

obtaining a sensitivity analysis of the key
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash
flow forecasts prepared by management
and considering the resulting impact on the
impairment charge for the year and whether
there were any indicators of management bias;
and
DEEERHNERNERRERERRRANE
BBRETHRMESN > XEEALHFERREE
HENZEUREAFEEERRRENTR . &

considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of certain of the Group’s
stores, including the key assumptions and
sensitivities to changes in such assumptions,
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
SRATEA RN ZAE  ZRGEEVBHEERTR
BH BEEEERTHEEMENYE FEMRBEUR
BREEENEEREMENKE  BREERRKRRKR
HUERRSBOHBMED M -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

w

FARETEE(E)

Recognition of supplier income

HAER AR

Refer to the accounting policies set out in note 1(m) to the consolidated financial statements.

FBRRG SR T 1(m) T B R E 5 BE »

The Key Audit Matter
BREENSHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNMEEZSE

The Group earns supplier income under several types
of different arrangements with its suppliers. The
arrangements vary in nature and size and include
volume based discounts and rebates and fees
earned from assisting suppliers with their marketing
campaigns.
EEEEREEERIVEZETE T HRIERB WA -
ZEZHNMERRELRE R BEBEREEEN
HMERF - DR BB 175 B A R E 17 & 85 7E B M W EL Y
B

Volume based discounts and rebates are recognised as
a deduction from the cost of purchase of merchandise
when the performance conditions associated with them
are met.
REETNTNANEFNEFSHBERREERER T’
BAREMERBEANMREE -

Fees earned from assisting suppliers with their
marketing campaigns are earned over the period of
the contractual agreements with individual suppliers.
The total income recognised is, therefore, based on
the expected entitlement earned up to the financial
reporting date under each agreement.

B8t By (L FE R 1T & 8RB T BRER A B B T A B M B 4
FERETLNERBEDNEIRBBA - ALt ZBKRAT
BEXODHRBEM KRR B PARRNNERNMEE -

We identified recognition of supplier income as a key
audit matter because the size and complexity of the
arrangements with suppliers increase the risk that the
consolidated financial statements may not promptly or
accurately reflect the Group’s entitlements under the
contracts agreed with suppliers.
BEMEHERRABIBRERERETSIE  RAEMERE
BRI VZHNREMEMESEN SEEEMEERHME
NiHEET R A REEEERS U BRR P RS ERE
Hb S BR A LB o

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
supplier income included the following:

BPRFEEEERARIEMATHEFEFBE

° understanding and evaluating the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
management’s key internal controls over the
recognition of supplier income;

. T ML E IR E R R B A S TR ARV ES
BAMEHER BERABELHERYE

. assessing the Group’s revenue recognition
policies in respect of supplier income by
inspecting the terms and conditions set out in
each type of standard agreement used with
suppliers with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

. ELHMEREAN S EEERE DI HNRR
M - UEHE SEEMERHRARINBE
REESRBTEHENZRE ;

° evaluating, on a sample basis, the inputs to
the information technology applications which
calculate volume based discounts and rebates
by comparing the inputs with underlying
documentation, including sales and purchase
volume data and discount and rebate rates in
the respective agreements;

. ZEMBEENEZEEENNMANERMNNERNREE
ARz AE YKZEEREEEXH (B8
$5 55 AN R B8 BUHE LA &40 5 5 P R S B BT A0 AR A
) MEHLE

° evaluating, on a sample basis, the recognition of
fees earned from assisting suppliers with their
marketing campaigns by inspecting underlying
documentation, including supplier income
agreements or confirmations from suppliers
in respect of the fulfilment of performance
conditions; and

. ZBMRFREREAX (BREMERRAGRS
AHEEERERERRENERE) LT EE
BB HERETEHEIDIUNERREE
BRI R
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BYZHENRESE

Key audit matters (Continued)

FARETEE(E)

Recognition of supplier income (Continued)

HEm B ARE (8)

The Key Audit Matter
BMEENSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWESNETEEZEE

° comparing, on a sample basis, the amount
of supplier income received by the Group for
the year with that confirmed by the respective
suppliers through the “invoice-tracking system”,
which is an on-line platform accessible by both
the suppliers and the Group.

o ZHRMELEE BEEERAFERRMHER WA
TR HEAARAMERRBIBRRERAS I(HEBK

EEEOUBHENELTE) MEIZBAEE -

Valuation of inventories

FEME

FEEE S EIREN L 14R M1 (m) T B E 5 B -

Refer to note 14 and the accounting policies set out in note 1(m) to the consolidated financial statements.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

FEDERARAISRFEMNED 2BEEIIR -

Management reviews the status of inventories on hand
on a regular basis to identify slow moving items and
may determine either to provide markdowns or to
return certain items to suppliers at cost after deduction
of unearned supplier income.
EEEEHREREFENMR - EBIFHEER AR
ERBFERME  NENERARBREMNHERIBARIRMHE
BRERAMEROEF S ER °

The provision for inventories is calculated based on an
inventory ageing analysis, actual sales and purchase
data and management experience and judgement
regarding estimated markdowns as well as the current
inventory profile.

FEZRE DREFEERS T - ERHEERREHIE
B TR i e 5 B 1B DA TR B A 7 S RO B A B R 4 IR 7 A
=0

No provision is provided for inventories returnable to
suppliers at their original cost based on the terms set
out in certain purchase agreement.

3 A AR T8 45 T2 BR BB 10 3 P AR FUIR R 16 AU AR B FE R Y
e TTFAREBE-

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
inventories included the following:

BN FEGMERTATHETEFBE

° understanding and evaluating the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of management’s key internal controls over
inventory management, including the purchase
of inventories and review of inventory status;

. THENFLEEERFEERE (BRBEFENE
BlfFERAR) PRk A AVEA 52 A BRIZ B £ R G - Bt
FMBELHBERM

° assessing whether the provision for inventories
at the year end date was consistent with
the Group’s inventory provision policy by
recalculating the provision for inventories based
on the percentages and other parameters in
the Group’s inventory provision policy and
considering the Group’s inventory provision
policy with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

. 2B EEEGFERARRTHNEERILLMEM
SHUENAEFERE  UFh ERERFERZ
FERBRTHEFERARRE -3 RER B&

NEERAERRRENERTEMNEINER;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters (Continued)

BYZHBENRES

I

FARETEE(E)

Valuation of inventories (Continued)

FEHE (&)

The Key Audit Matter
BREENSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RPN ESNAEEZEE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because determining an appropriate provision
for inventories involves significant management
judgement in determining the markdowns necessary to
sell slow moving inventories which cannot be returned
to suppliers.

BEMBFEREABRETEE  EREEEENTFE
BEN EEEETMHEETEREMHERNFHEER 2R
B FHEXRHEK-

. assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in
the inventory ageing report were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing the
details with the respective purchase records for
the selected sample;

. ZERHMERELNFEERBETAYIERREHKE
PEBENERERR  WHKZEERERHEEE
MERBB R SR AE S L

° evaluating the Group’s inventory provision
policy by comparing management’s forecasts
of markdowns for a sample of inventories in
prior years to the historical sales amounts and
markdown data for the current and prior years;
and

. ZRRKEEEHBIFEFEREFEINMER
AEBEHHERE RERBIFENREREBFEY
ke 5 EEBENEFERGBRX K

° assessing the enforceability of inventory return
arrangements agreed with suppliers, on a
sample basis, by inspecting the terms set
in the respective purchase agreements, and
evaluating the Group’s inventory provision policy
for returnable items by comparing the actual
losses resulting from the return of inventories
to suppliers, including additional transportation
costs and the reduction in purchase related
supplier income, with the total amount of
inventory returns in prior years.

. EBMBEELRBHZPEI VKR - HEMER
RIMIFERE TP A REIBATHESTIME - AE
BEEFEROHEEEMELENERE X (BEHEN
ERRAMERMERIRARY) BBETFENT
ERRAFEELLL 57t EEETREEMNTF
ERBHE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

BYZHBENRES

=
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZHENRESE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wai Ka Lun.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 February 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEEmik

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BEZEZE-AF+ZA=Z+-HLEFE (UAR¥TREN)

W

2016 2015
—E-AE| —=-3%
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
M &E AR®¥F AR®ET T
Revenue A 2 10,085,679 10,660,452
Cost of sales Ei=R== PN 14 (8,347,148) (8,829,048)
Gross profit E 1,738,531 1,831,404
Other revenue H b 2= 3 539,608 521,273
Other net loss HAh 518 F5E 3 (415,507) (29,347)
Distribution and store operating costs R Bk R S E R AR (1,892,055) (1,915,061)
Administrative expenses THEHA (402,505) (334,339)
(Loss)/profit from operations reg (B8 R (431,928) 73,930
Finance costs b & B AR 4(a) (82,783) (73,777)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBLAT (B518) B F 4 (514,711) 153
Income tax Frig st 5 (22,889) (18,224)
Loss for the year FEB#R (537,600) (18,071)
Attributable to: DTN
Equity shareholders of the Company NN (537,587) (17,958)
Non-controlling interests IR RS (13) (113)
Loss for the year FEBR (537,600) (18,071)
Loss per share BREE 8
Basic (RMB cents) EXR(AR% D) (2.41) (0.08)
Diluted (RMB cents) BE(ARED) (2.41) (0.08)

The notes on pages 71 to 141 form part of these financial

statements.

VAR VR N=Wrd (LN F S E g i
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeBEREREMZEBZERR
hin

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BEZZ-—AF+ZAZ+-HLEFE (UAR¥TREN)

2016 2015
—EB-RE| ZZT-—I1F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T AR®F T
Loss for the year FEB#E (537,600) (18,071)
Other comprehensive income for the FEHMEE WS
year (after tax and reclassification (RBRESERAER)
adjustments)
ltems that may be reclassified HETE 2 BHEBRR
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIH :
Exchange differences on translation of BREPEARLANE
financial statements of entities outside (MR E ) BASh A 5] B 7%
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) & = [E i £ 48 12,118 5,956
Total comprehensive income FEXHWRARE (525,482) (12,115)
for the year
Attributable to: LR AL AL
Equity shareholders of the Company RABBER (525,469) (12,002)
Non-controlling interests IR R (13) (113)
(525,482) (12,115)

The notes on pages 71 to 141 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB AR R |k
I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(AARMTHER)
31 December | 31 December
2016 2015
—E-—RF —E—-I1fF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
LhEs AR®FT AR®EF T
Non-current assets ARBEE
Property, plant and equipment Nk -EENRE 9 1,560,671 1,661,887
Interests in leasehold land held for own &EHEEBHA LTt
use under operating leases HEREE 9 129,064 135,358
1,689,735 1,797,245
Intangible assets BILEE 10 145,568 166,481
Gooduwill maE 11 2,654,252 | 2,911,778
Prepaid lease payments for premises FENYEHEEE 13 10,851 20,852
Other long-term prepayments HibRMENLEMN 9,461 3,390
Deferred tax assets BEMBERE 24(b) 35,647 31,262
4,545,514 4,931,008
Current assets EEE
Prepaid lease payments for premises FEAMEREE 13 5,388 12,849
Inventories Rt 14 1,240,544 1,221,436
Trade and other receivables gERHMEWRIE 15 830,302 737,066
Pledged bank deposits SR FRITER 16 59,545 59,436
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEH 17 204,920 165,842
2,340,699 2,196,629
Current liabilities nEBRE
Trade and other payables LER A MENRR 18 3,885,544 3,764,731
Bank loans and overdrafts RITEARAREX 19 222,900 267,118
Other loans Hts & 21 - 43,500
Obligations under finance leases MEHESE 22 11,345 9,895
Current taxation B HA %% 18 24(a) 17,823 20,402
Provisions ] 23 28,069 1,101
.| 4,165,681 | 4,106,747
Netcurrent liabilites _______________#"B8\EF& | | (1,824,982)| _ (1,910,118)
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERABAERS 2,720,532 3,020,890

The notes on pages 71 to 141 form part of these financial ZH71ZE141BE MR BHRE ZZH °
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR Rk
him

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(AARSTEBER)
31 December | 31 December
2016 2015
—B-XE| —T-—FF
+=A +=A
=+—H =t—H
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
Bt &F AR®T T AREFT T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans MITER 19 - 774,860
Loans from controlling shareholder BEZERERER 20 971,877 -
Other loans HA & 21 46,446 -
Obligations under finance leases MEREETE 22 142,439 153,784
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBBEE 24(b) 36,842 42,225
e iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiioo........|....1,197,604 | 970,869
NET ASSETS EEFH 1,522,928 2,050,021
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital [N 25(c) 405,726 405,726
Reserves R 1,117,202 1,642,671
Total equity attributable to equity AAFRREN
shareholders of the Company R 1,522,928 2,048,397
Non-controlling interests FFERER - 1,624
TOTAL EQUITY SR 1,522,928 2,050,021

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23

February 2017. RETIE o

Soopakij Chearavanont

MEA
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on pages 71 to 141 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
TRERERBEHERK
68

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BEZEZE-—AF+ZA=Z+-HLEFE (UAR¥TREN)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AL ARREL
Share Non-
Share Share option  Revaluation Exchange  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
i RiEE  BRERE EfhGE Bk ZitEE BE  FBRER Bg

(note 25(c)  (note 25(d))  (note 25(d)  (note 25(d))  (note 25(d))
(Wzkos(e)  (M&s(d) (&) (MEEes()  (HiEEes(d)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEETR  ARETR  ARETn  AREBTr  AR®Tr  ARETr  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR

At 1 January 2015 WZE-1%-f-H 396,093 1,836,932 53,841 (9,166) 234,929 (504,251) 2,008,378 1,737 2,010,115
Loss for the year EERB - - - - . (795  (17.959) My (8om)
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2E W& - - - - 5,956 - 5,956 - 5,956

Total comprehensive income for  EE2ERHBE
the year - - - - 5,956 (795 (12000 My (1211

Shares issued upon exercise of  {TERREMET2RH

share options (note 25(c)) (H&F5(c)) 9,633 96,229 (53,841) - - - 52,021 - 52,021

At 31 December 2015 R-Z-E1%
TZAZt-H 405,726 1,933,161 - (9,166) 240,885 (522,209) 2,048,397 1,624 2,050,021
At 1 January 2016 RZE-AE-A-B 405,726 1,933,161 - (9,166) 240,885 (522,209) 2,048,397 1,624 2,050,021
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - S (B3T580) (13 (57,600
Other comprehensive income ~ E2E W& - - - - 12,118 - 12,118 - 12,118

Total comprehensive income ~ EE2ANEAE
for the year - - - - 12,118 (537567 (525469) 13 62548

Disposal of two subsidiaries LERFHELR
(note 31) (Hz31) - - - - - - - (1611 (1611)

At 31 December 2016 RoE-RE
+ZE=1-H 405,726 1,933,161

(9,166) 253,003 (1,059,796) 1,522,928 = 1,522,928

The notes on pages 71 to 141 form part of these financial ZE71E141EZHEIARMERE =4 o
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERETREHMEK
hin

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BEZZ-—AF+ZAZ+-HLEFE (UAR¥TREN)

2016 2015
ZE-ARE| ZE-IF
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
M &E AR TR AR® T
Operating activities EEER
(Loss)/profit before taxation B A (B18]) &F (514,711) 153
Adjustments for: BT A
Depreciation of property, plant M- EERRZE
and equipment ZiE 4(c) 185,656 181,129
Amortisation of land lease premium T EER 2 EE 4(c) 6,294 6,294
Amortisation of intangible assets BILEE2HH 4(c) 10,250 10,838
Impairment losses BEEE 3 351,206 15,020
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE FERKE
and equipment ZFEE 3 26,437 10,565
Gain on disposal of two subsidiaries HEMXHE LA
2 F 31 (148) -
Finance costs & AR 4(a) 82,783 73,777
Interest income FE WA 3 (2,633) (4,490)
Foreign exchange loss SNESTE BB B 75,861 69,140
Gain on the forward foreign exchange RZHIEHESYN
contracts 2 i Al 3 (37,849) (72,765)
Operating profit before changes in EEESEHAEE
working capital i A 183,146 289,661
Decrease in prepaid lease payments for FEYEHEE D
premises 17,462 15,803
Increase in inventories FEEM (21,222) (162,524)
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits BFERBROET
pledged for inventory purchases and ERZIBTERIKTE
guarantees to landlords () H (109) 12,445
Increase in trade and other receivables &I I H fth FE U FRIE IS N (83,337) (35,396)
Increase in trade and other payables &I K H b FE T FIE LS 0 150,887 208,207
Cash generated from operations BEELACES 246,827 328,196
PRC income tax paid 2R EHIE 24(a) (35,236) (22,072)
Net cash generated from operating BEERELECHSTE
activities 211,591 306,124

The notes on pages 71 to 141 form part of these financial ZHE71Z141EZHWEIARMBEHEE ZIH ©
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTREHRRK

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

v

BE-Z-AF+-A=+-HLFE(UAR¥TREMN)

2016 2015
—E-AE| —=-3%
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
M &E AR TR AR T
Investing activities REXEK
Payment for purchases of property, plant BEY¥% - EER®RE
and equipment 2T (198,197) (324,739)
Interest received B2 WF 2 2,633 4,490
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEY % - EERRE
and equipment ZRE 4,336 4,530
Net cash inflows from disposal of seven  H&+t R/EH# FWSL
stores to WSL ZEERANFE 26,657 188,545
Net cash inflows from disposal of two HEMRWB AR Z
subsidiaries BRERANFHE 31 4,738 -
Net cash used in investing activities REXBRERAZREFHE (159,833) (127,174)
Financing activities Eﬂﬁ%ﬁ
Proceeds from bank loans TERZRK 204,900 -
Proceeds from loans from controlling } Hﬁﬂxiﬁ 2
shareholder 971,877
Repayment of bank loans RITERZER (1,102,386) (126 033)
Capital element of finance leases paid THMERE 2 RS IBH (9,895) (8,968)
Interest element of finance leases paid S'Zﬁﬁﬂﬁ*ﬂlaiZﬂ BEH (15,725) (16,653)
Interest on bank loans paid TERZHE (48,848) (48,445)
Interest on other loans paid Eﬁiﬂéi"‘Z*U 5 (1,083) (775)
Interest on issuance of bank RITHHZAGEERE
accepted bills (8,869) (4,361)
Loan arrangement and guarantee THERZHREREA
fees paid (21,723) (1,215)
Net proceeds from exercise of THEBREZRIEFHE
share options 25(c) - 52,021
Net cash used in financing activities MEXRERZEESFE (31,752) (154,429)
Net increase in cash and ReRkReEHEEMFEE
cash equivalents 20,006 24,521
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEEREE I EE
changes 1,072 1,267
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HAZzBEERES
at 1 January £S5 165,842 140,054
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—HA=+—-HB2
at 31 December BEeNBREEHE 17 186,920 165,842

The notes on pages 71 to 141 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(e) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

As the Group’s hypermarket stores are all located in
the PRC and most of the Group’s transactions are
conducted and denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), which
is the functional currency of the Company’s operating
subsidiaries, the financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
stated. The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”).

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB537.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB
18.1 million). As at 31 December 2016, the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately RMB1,825.0 million
(2015: RMB 1,910.1 million).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTEE (&)
(Continued)

MBHBREREE (H)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b)

(Continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.

The directors note that despite the loss from operations
of RMB431.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group generated net cash from operating
activities of approximately RMB211.6 million during the
year (2015: RMB306.1 million). In December 2016, the
Group has implemented a restructuring plan to streamline
its organisation structure and to reduce operating costs.
Although this organisational restructuring resulted in a
significant amount of termination benefits in 2016, the
directors believe this will improve the performance and
operating cashflows of the Group in future periods.

As disclosed in notes 19 and 20, the Group had borrowed
loans from its controlling shareholder amounting to
approximately USD139.8 million (equivalent to RMB971.9
million) with maturities in December 2018. These loans
from controlling shareholder were fully used to repay
syndicated bank loans led by The Siam Commercial Bank
Public Company Limited, which were originally repayable
with instalment repayments scheduled through December
2018.

Based on the Group’s 2017 business plan and cash flow
forecast and unused bank facilities on hand, the directors
believe the Group will generate sufficient cash flows to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due in the next
twelve months. In preparing the cash flow forecast, the
directors also consider the Group’s ultimate holding
company will continue to support the Group to the extent
necessary.

In view of the above, the directors consider that the Group
will generate sufficient financial resources for its working
capital and capital expenditure requirements and that it
will be able to meet its financial obligations as when they
fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the derivative financial instruments are stated at their fair
value as explained in note 1(h).

Use of estimation and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 34.

Change in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cashflows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment. Non-controlling interests represent the
equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and the total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree;
over (ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 1(1)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(l)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see
note 1(k)); and

- other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 30
years after the date of completion.

-  Leasehold improvements 13 — 20 years or over

the remaining term of

the lease, whichever

is shorter
—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 8 years
—  Motor vehicles 3 - 8 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Stores under fit out represent the cost of leasehold
improvements and other fit out costs incurred to
date. Stores under fit out are transferred to leasehold
improvements and the relevant other asset categories
when the stores are substantially ready for their intended
use. No depreciation is provided in respect of stores under
fit out.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets represent the favourable aspect of
operating leases relative to market terms acquired in
business combinations, where the acquiree is the lessee.
These intangible assets are recognised and measured at
fair value upon acquisition. The fair value is determined
based on a comparison of the market and contractual
rental rates at the date of acquisition.

Intangible assets associated with favourable aspects
of operating leases acquired in a business combination
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 1(l)). Amortisation is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the remaining
lease term.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 1(i). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 1(l). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal repayments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on
the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of the assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

— interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill;
—  prepaid lease payments for premises; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a CGU).

1

TESEE (&)

U]

BEERE (&)

(i) HMZEEZRE
AEBREEREHREBAI
RINREZEEHRR  LBEUT
EERAHBRELTR (HHE
BRON) - SR LETER Z B EE
BETBEEHTHESERD
- YE -EERRKRE
- EEHECEHRIHHEE

s
- BREE.
- BE;

- HEAUFREEE R

—  RAR2QF B RO R Y
BRrAIzRE

WMHBEMET SR - @R

BEZTWREIHEE - L 5B

BEME > TWELBEMRER

gﬁ& TR FATH AT E
B e

- FETWEHE

—IHEEZUKREHEED
HEEFHEHETHAEBRZ
BeE EAAEAERE
ET’%E;-I-EE;KIEﬁ/JILE;t

BERMEKHmSHEYR
H%FE?TE&’QF%EHF’E?Z
Tz BAIRBE IR EBRRE
HEBE WEEREELE
FEBIYRAEMEERE
EC2BHERAULBILE
Y BRERAZBNEEA
Bl (ENBESELEEMN) ERE
Al Y Bl S 58 o

C.P. Lotus Corporation |M&&7EH R



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the CGU
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of CGU are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(l)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the moving weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, after
deducting discounts and payments from suppliers, except
where such payments represent an reimbursement of
identifiable expenditures incurred by the Group which
provide identifiable benefits to the suppliers separate from
the Group’s purchase of the supplier’s goods. Supplier
payments include cash or its equivalent in form (e.g, free
goods, credits applied to future purchase).

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(l)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(9]

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is
non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s
option, and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends
on preference share capital classified as equity are
recognised as distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(u)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Annual Report 2016 & #&

1

TESEE (R

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

MEEE

M SEERA AEHREL S KA
MIaTER - NHERE  WEEELU
MERR AT R - MR S AR
BEE 2 EE5  HUBKRRRE
REEERAREREMEMSFEREN
FEiREPHER -

BRRA

BEARAUWTERELD - FHERBEAD
AIEFEER - REMKRESIES &
WoEAER D EARRZBER
RZREERABEBEAT DIKIRH

EERHMENKE

LENAMENRBERAABEDKE
7 o BRARIE M 51 (u) ()T B 2 75 18
REEN  EERHMEAREAR
BBMEBRAANR  HEERRFELT
ER AEBAANR-

ReERREEH

REkRReSHEEERTEARR
T FHRRIT MR BB 2
MER - RERESREME2RE
ZEREAERBRESCHEE R
 (BEZBEARTKR)  LEBAR
ZEAREY - AMERGARERE
BRm= RERBAESEHTIBEER
BRERER  UBRAKERSEE
— R ZRITIEX °



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R 2R B &

-

W

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial lattice model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits/accumulated
losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 1(u)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

1 FESHEE (&)

u BHHBER BERIRER

(#)

()

(ii)

R 2 BER (E)

NEERBELERAZIERESEHE
RERBREEZSPEBERRA
BB AEIER 2 U o BEOh - i
EREBHER2EFEABRBER
BRAEERBTER k)@
EEZECSEBEERMZ
BERELEREMBENRER
FIBR 2 £ (ANWRER S
BB 28R %E)  BRE
B 51 (u) (i) FR SR B 45 o

HAtEBERAARE

BEDASERIARAEBES
EMEE ZEEREEEEZE
BN SRR HEMEE - I
7% 55 DU R 3 0R B 5E BB AE
REH A S - BEREBE
BEX  BEFRAPEHESR
ZXHBREAR-

oM EER & 2 AR RUE
S BIEE R BEAF H AT SEAART RS - &
BEESHBERANREE R

BRI 2 2 AT REME AR IR E BRI ©
ERR-ERBERKBIE 2
AR BREMBRREFEZT
REATERBERNREE -
AR 58 2 7 B B IE B BR
G e

C.P. Lotus Corporation |M&&7EH R



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iff)

(iv)

v)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customers. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Promotion and service income

Promotion and service income not related to the
purchase of goods are recognised when the services
are rendered.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTEE (&)

(Continued)
(v) Revenue recognition (Continued) (v) AR (E)
(vi) Government grants (vi) BT B

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from

BTN A E B 5 S IR
A% S W % % 38 T B S IR A RO 1B
RT A A BRREBE - @
BREECELE 2AXXHEBER
BETREARENERHER
BEABBA - HEAEEEE
A28 - EAAEEEREE
PRk HRRZEENTEA
FHMAURDITERX B ARNE

the carrying amount of the asset and consequently wER o
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
(w) Translation of foreign currency (w) shemE

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Except as noted below, exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of entities outside the PRC are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
The assets and liabilities of entities outside the PRC are
translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Exchange differences arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in foreign
operations are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the consolidated financial statements.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset, which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various operations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Group is the operation of
hypermarket stores in the PRC. Revenue represents the net
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group
to external customers, less returns, discounts and value added
taxes.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and there is no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

All revenue from external customers are generated in the PRC
and all significant operating assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, the Group has a single operating and
reportable segment — operation of hypermarket stores in the
PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

3 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 3

Hfth Wy 58 K2 H 65 18 % 58

2016 2015
“E-RE| ZET—EHF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRT| ARETR
Other revenue Hfh g 25
Leasing of store premises ERYERERA 481,154 432,125
Other promotion and service income Hih#E R RE KA 51,829 76,058
Interest income F E W A 2,633 4,490
Government grants (note (i) BT 8 B (B £ (i) 3,992 8,600
539,608 521,273
Other net loss HitE B F8E
Net foreign exchange loss B X BB FEE (75,861) (68,472)
Gain on the forward foreign exchange ERMMEREESN Z2EA
contracts (note 15(ii)) (B &£ 15(ii)) 37,849 72,765
Net loss from store project cancellations — BUH & & 5t &1 2 &5 18 75 88
(note (i) (B & Gii)) - (8,055)
Net gain on disposal of two subsidiaries & M XM B 2~ 5 2 & 7 7F 88
(note 31) (M$5E31) 148 _
Impairment losses AEEE
- property, plant and equipment -ME- -EERKZE
(note 9(a)) (Ht£¥9(a)) (83,017) (11,192)
- intangible assets (note 10) —-EBEE (M&E10) (10,663) (3,828)
- goodwill (note 11) - B8 (1) (257,526) -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEVE FEERXBZER
and equipment FEE (26,437) (10,565)
(415,507) (29,347)

Notes: MEsE :
(i) Government grants represent subsidies received from local 0
authorities.

(i)  This represents the losses incurred in relation to the cancellation

of certain store opening projects in 2015.
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4 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R R B R

W

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

4 BRBA(BE) EF
BRBLAT (A54R) I B Bl e 4

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-—FE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR TR AR® T
(a) Finance costs: (a) RERAK:
Interest on borrowings wholly- REFABHEEZENR
repayable within five years FE
- Bank loans —RITER 48,848 48,445
- Other loans - HMERRK 1,083 775
Finance charges on obligations under AMEHSESECMEEHR
finance leases (note 22) (FrzE22) 15,725 16,653
Interest on issuance of bank accepted RITHRHZALERFHE
bills 8,869 4,361
Total interest expense on financial FEAANBITABRZEH
liabilities not at fair value through BEZERNE
profit or loss 74,525 70,234
Loan arrangement and guarantee fees ERRYEREREA 8,258 3,543
82,783 73,777
(b) Staff costs: (b) EERKZA :
Salaries, wages and other benefits He  ITEREMEBER 896,247 844,814
Contributions to defined contribution EREM IR IKET & 2 it
retirement plans (note 29) (Fz£29) 92,898 84,939
Termination benefits (note (i) EHEIEFHE (FFEEG)) 44,640 -
1,033,785 929,753
(c) Other items: (c) HfbEE :
Depreciation (note 9(a)) e (MEEE9(a)) 185,656 181,129
Amortisation e
- land lease premium (note 9(a)) -+ HEE MK
(KT 5E9(a)) 6,294 6,294
- intangible assets (note 10) -\ EE (M3E10) 10,250 10,838
Auditors’ remuneration — audit services ZE AT & — | ET AR K 3,450 3,600
Operating lease charges — property EENEERA-MEHEE
rentals 498,387 485,997
Donations B 3 4
Cost of inventories (note 14) TFERA (MEE14) 8,347,148 8,829,048
Note: M 5E
() During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has i)y BEZE—AR"FE+=-B=+—-HBLEE

implemented a restructuring plan to streamline the organisation
structure, which has resulted to the termination of certain
employee’s services. Accordingly, the Group has made provision
for the related termination benefits at the end of the reporting
period.

W AREBCBEiREATSLUEHAME
B BRI TESRSE - Bt » A&
gﬁg%,ﬁﬁﬂiﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁé%@%iﬁﬁfﬁﬂj
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 RGEBEBZXRZHEBH

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) REEEBERZHED:
represents:
2016 2015
—g—x%E| —T-If
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR AR T
Current tax - PRC BB i 18 —
Provision for the year FERE 28,097 31,733
Under/(over)-provision in respect of AFEERR(BEE) HE
prior years BiE 4,560 (3,851)
32,657 27,882
Deferred tax = IERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary EEREBERELE
differences (note 24(b)) (K 3E24(b)) (9,768) (9,658)
22,889 18,224

Income tax is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate any
assessable profits in Hong Kong during the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT law”) of
the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC income tax at 25% (2015: 25%) on their
assessable profits as determined in accordance with the
CIT law.

Further, under the CIT law, 10% withholding tax is levied
on the foreign investor in respect of dividend distributions
arising from a foreign invested enterprise’s profit earned
after 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2016, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group had accumulated losses and
therefore no deferred tax liabilities were recognised in this
regard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B %% ¥R 3% BT &
| %

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 RGZEBEBERZHMBH (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b) BEEHRES (BB BFRE

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates: AREFEZHERNT :
2016 2015
ZE-AF| ZE-IF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR AR T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (E518) a R (514,711) 153
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before LL25% 5t B 2 BRFL Al
taxation, calculated at 25% (2015: 25%) (&) /EFBR R H &
(note) —E—RH%F 25%)
(P &E) (128,678) 38
Under/(over)-provision in prior years AFEEXREE(GBE)
BE 4,560 (3,851)
Tax effect of non-deductible impairment A ] B?ﬁﬁgﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁé!z
loss for goodwill BB 64,382 -
Tax effect of other non-deductible Eﬁﬂ;ﬁ_lmlz?ﬁ'ﬁizﬁi%
expenses e 11,297 14,126
Tax effect of non-taxable income 3&%‘%@& WA ZBHBEEE (9,462) (16,849)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBEEB BB
= 46,389 28,296
Tax effect of temporary differences from KERWE - EERRE
impairment losses for property, plant &ﬂﬁ/ﬁéﬂfﬁ%h
and equipment and intangible assets not ERREZFE KL
recognised 23,420 3,755
Tax effect of other temporary differences *ﬁﬁﬁfﬂj,ﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁkﬁgﬁz
not recognised 1% 8- 15,957 -
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised £ A {Iiﬂiﬁﬁ o 2 L th BT By
temporary differences utilised ERRBERE - (3,158)
Tax effect of prior year’s recognised tax  C 2|8 /# [0 FE#E:2
losses expired/reversed BEEB2BESE - 2,135
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised tax ﬁﬁﬁ&iiﬂﬁi}uﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
losses utilised ZREEE (4,976) (6,268)
Actual tax expense ERHEER 22,889 18,224
Note: The PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% (2015: 25%) is et : AREAEEEERTEZLE W
used as the operations of the Group are substantially based LL25% (ZZE—HF : 25%) ZH

in the PRC. Bl EMEHRHEETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIBEB D AMEHEI83(NEE(AT (]
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BESTRER) RO F2BIEEES
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BT :

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016: BE-Z—XRF+-A=+—-HLEFE:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefit Share-
Directors’ benefits Discretionary ~ scheme based
fees in kind bonus contributions  Sub-total  payments Total
Hé 2R NG A

ESHe FRERNE BEsRA EASHR it BEXAH 28
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR AR%TR

Executive directors BiTEZ
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont  #E A %4 - 5,003 - 15 5,018 - 5,018
Mr. Li Wen Hai HEELE - 6,153 - 15 6,168 - 6,168
Mr. Narong Chearavanont i 545 - 3,525 - - 3,525 - 3,525
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed ~ REE %% - 4,640 - 15 4,655 - 4,655
Mr. Michael Ross ERIELE - - - - - - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BNTEE - - - - - - -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont EGR o - 802 - - 802 - 802
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont # 1= %4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong  Umroong Sanphasitvong’t - - - - - - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Piyawat Titasattavorakul% 4

(resigned on (R=B-~FT-A1H

10 November 2016) B - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive B EHTES

directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit# & 206 - - - 206 - 206
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara  Songkitti Jaggabatara’t 4 206 - - - 206 - 206
Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong  Itthapom Subhawong 4 206 - - - 206 - 206
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech  Prasobsook Boondech’t 4 206 - - - 206 - 206
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BHNLE 206 - - - 206 - 206
Total ok 1,030 20,123 - 45 21,198 - 21,198
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 EEM< (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015: BE-Z-RAF+ZA=+—HBLEE:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement

and benefit Share-

Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees ~ inkind bonus contributions  Sub-total  payments Total

B 2ER HRB A

EShE FASAE BE2R4 BASER M BB RE
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARRTR ARMTR ARBTR ARRTR

Executive directors BiTES

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont  #ZE A %4 - 4,702 - 14 4,716 - 4,716
Mr. Li Wen Hai TEELE - 4,826 - - 4,826 - 4,826
Mr. Narong Chearavanont &M %4 - 3,537 - - 3,537 - 3,537
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed ~ BRIEE %% - 4,357 - 14 4,371 - 4,371
Mr. Michael Ross EZELE - - - - - - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BOEEE - 207 - 1 228 - 208
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HRRAE - 753 - - 753 - 753
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont # 1= %4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong % 4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Piyawat Titasattavorakul% & - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive B HTES

directors

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit# 4 193 - - - 193 - 193
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara  Songkitti Jaggabatara’t & 193 - - - 193 - 193
Mr. ltthaporn Subhawong  Itthaporn Subhawong %t & 193 - - - 193 - 193
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech  Prasobsook Boondech% & 193 - - - 193 - 193
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BHNEE 193 - - - 193 - 193
Total &% 965 18,402 - 29 19,396 - 19,396
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there BE-_Z—R"ER-ZFE—HF+=A
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors Et+—HLEZFER AEEHERES
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as THREREEEABBMAREBRRR
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no director waived IO B 2 SR SR B B 2 BEME o IEAh - KRB
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2016 and EE-RERZE-HFTZA=T—
2015. BEZFER HMESERETAME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

7 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2015:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note
6. The emoluments in respect of the other one (2015: one)

REHNES

TENBESFMEES N (=ZE—-F
FE) AES HE € B R K el
E-#fT2— U (ZZE—HF: —{1)EE

individual is as follows: ZEEHBENT ¢
2016 2015
—E—-XF —E-HHF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AR T
Salaries and other emoluments HekHEMME 4,925 4,744
Discretionary bonuses BE 2 TBAL - -
Share-based payments UG ABERI - -
Retirement scheme contributions ERESHER - -
4,925 4,744
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

8 LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the
following data:

8 BREIR

(a)

BREXESE
BREXAERETIENTE

2016 2015
—E-RXE —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T AR®BTF T
Loss for the year attributable to equity RARBRREGZFEEBE
shareholders of the Company (537,587) (17,958)

The weighted average number of shares is calculated based
on the following data:

MEFIIRMEE UTIERE :

2016
—E-A%

2015
—E-—AEF

Number of ordinary shares in issue
at 1 January

Effect of ordinary shares issued upon exercise
of share options on 21 May 2015

i &

R—A—HERITZEBR

R-Z-—RFHA=-+—H
TREREMRTEEN

ZEE
Number of Series A convertible BRITZARSIATREK
preference shares in issue BERBKE
Number of Series B convertible BT ZBR IR
preference shares in issue BERBRE

Number of Series C convertible
preference shares in issue
Number of Series D convertible
preference shares in issue

BERRRE
BRRRE

BT ZCR TR
E#IT ZDAFI AR

11,019,072,390 | 10,408,271,730

I
X

- 376,520,955
1,518,807,075 | 1,518,807,075
3,897,110,334 | 3,897,110,334
3,671,509,764 | 3,671,509,764

2,211,382,609 | 2,211,382,609

Total HERC)

22,317,882,172 | 22,083,602,467

As set out in note 25(c), the holders of the convertible
preference shares are entitled to receive the same
dividends as the holders of ordinary shares.

Diluted loss per share

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2016 is the same as the basic loss per share as there were
no dilutive potential ordinary or convertible preference
shares outstanding during the year.

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2015 is the same as the basic loss per share as all
the potential ordinary or convertible preference shares
outstanding during the year are anti-dilutive.

(b)

RIBMIEE25(c) - ATRBRELERIFTEA
AERHEEBEREE ARBUERRS
ZRER] ©

BREEEHE

REBEZZE-X"F+ZA=t—HZ
FE  ARAQRARFEARLEEM
ABABENE 2 EBRATRREL
Hﬁ* HitSREESERESRESNE
BER o

RBE-Z-—AF+-A=+—-Hx
FE EREECTEEITRREL
RGBREEN  AtEREBEESE
HEREREEHER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AND LEASEHOLD LAND

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

9 MEX - FERKREREE
+ ih

(a) RREEZHIR

Interests in
leasehold
Furniture, land held for
fixtures Stores own use under
Leasehold and Motor under operating
Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles fit out Sub-total leases Total
B SE EERAEZAR
£ HE%E R RE  EBREE Mt tHEEER a5
RMB’000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB' 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost: HA:
At1 January 2015 R-%-1%-5-A 234,324 1,588,472 563,817 23,281 27,131 2,437,025 201,042 2,638,067
Exchange adjustments Eig% - - 133 110 - 243 - 243
Additions hE - 2,308 32,187 12,531 271,763 324,739 - 324,739
Transfer g% - 170,787 114,536 910 (286,233) - - -
Disposals HeE - (14,633) (57,399) (5,576) (270) (77.878) - (77,878)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-TE+-A=1-A 234,324 1,746,934 653,224 31,256 18,301 2,684,129 201,042 2,885,171
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-F-A 234,324 1,746,934 653,224 31,256 18,391 2,684,129 201,042 2,885,171
Exchange adjustments EifE - - 168 365 - 533 - 533
Additions wE - 1,646 29,206 1,427 165,918 198,197 - 198,197
Transfer 44 - 23,158 72523 725 96,406) - - -
Disposals 1E - (28,355) (45,928) (7,019 - (81,302) - (81,302)
Disposal of two subsidiaries  HiEMFMHE A3 (H31)
(note 31) - - (81) - - (81) - (81)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-R"ETZA=1-H 234,324 1,743,383 709,112 26,754 87,903 2,801,476 201,042 3,002,518
Accumulated depreciation 23t ERHEFE :
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2015 W_Z-1%-F-A 100,201 503,236 187,973 10,880 - 892,290 59,390 951,680
Exchange adjustments Ei@E - - 130 284 - 414 - 414
Charge for the year FERER 11,405 92,595 70,139 6,990 - 181,129 6,204 187,423
Impairment losses (note 3) B E (HE3) - 7,920 3212 - - 11,192 - 11,102
Written back on disposal ~ HEZEE - (12,574) (46,644) (3,565) - (62,783) - (62,783)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F+ZA=1-A 111,606 681,177 214,870 14,589 - 1,022,242 65,684 1,087,926
At 1 January 2016 R=E-7E-5-A 111,606 681,177 214,870 14,589 - 1,022,242 65,684 1,087,926
Exchange adjustments Edg% - - 168 302 - 470 - 470
Charge for the year EERER 11,405 95,501 75,455 3,295 - 185,656 6,294 191,950
Impairment losses (note 3)  B{EA 8 (KEE3) - 63,940 19,077 - - 83,017 - 83,017
Written back on disposal ~ (HEZEIE - (17,002 (27,704) (5,829) - (50,529) - (50,529)
Written back on disposal of I ERFHEA R 2B (HiE31)
two subsidiaries (note 31) - - (51) - - (51) - (51)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-RE+-A=1-A 123,011 823,616 281,815 12,363 - 1,240,805 71978 1,312,783
Net book value: HREE:
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-RE+=A=1-A 11,313 919,767 427,097 14,391 87,903 1,560,671 129,064 1,689,735
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-TF+ZA=1-A 122,718 1,065,757 438,354 16,667 18,391 1,661,887 135,358 1,797,245
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued)
Impairment losses

As at 31 December 2016, due to a significant increase
in loss of certain stores, leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and equipment, and intangible
assets used in these stores of the Group were stated
net of impairment losses of RMB58,329,000 (2015:
RMB7,920,000), RMB14,017,000 (2015: RMB3,272,000),
and RMB10,663,000 (2015: RMB3,828,000), to write down
the carrying amount of these assets to their recoverable
amount of approximately RMB36,030,000 (2015:
RMB16,950,000), RMB8,658,000 (2015: RMB7,003,000)
and RMB22,107,000 (2015: RMB2,440,000) respectively.
In calculating these losses, the recoverable amounts of the
relevant assets were determined on the basis of their value
in use. The pre-tax discount rate of 13.5% used reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs.

As at 31 December 2016, certain stores were closed due
to the redevelopment plan initiated by the landlords for
the sites where the stores were located. The Group made
an impairment loss of RMB5,611,000 and RMB5,060,000
respectively over the relevant leasehold improvements
and furniture, fixtures and equipment of these stores to
write down the carrying value to these assets to their net
recoverable amounts, which was determined based on
their fair value less costs of disposal.

The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:

9 MEX - FERKREREE
3 (%)

(a) FRREMEZHIR(E)

T E R

RZE—ARE+ZB=+—-H AR
EEETEH2EBEAZE M
EEHoBEEEE  BR £#BERR
BRETEE  Bo5{IBRAARE
58,329,000t (ZE—HF : AR
7,920,0007t) + AK#14,017,0007C
(ZZE—HF . AR¥3,272,0007T)
kAR #10,663,000t (=& —F
F: AR %3,828,0007t) Z iH & &
B 2R LEEE 2 REERRE
ZrAEWEHEENE AKES36,030,000
T (ZZ—HF : AK®16,950,000
7T) ~ AR #8,658,000T (ZE—H
£ AR #7,003,0007T) & AR
22,107,000t (ZE—HF : AR¥
2,440,0007T) ° RErE L ZEEE » 18
BEENTWRESEREERAEREM
BT AR EA13.5% RMIEE
TS AEEELEN S HEREE
FEREELENESE AR -

R-E—RE+=-A=+—-H &#F
EHAETRESEERMEZY
¥R - AEBRAREER 2 HE
2 FM - HERREZREER
EEZRBEHAAEREHERAT
EEzWEEHE 2BERAARYE
5,611,000t & A R#55,060,0007T 2
BEEE -

(b) MEZIREEDHMT :

2016 2015
—g-xE| —=-n%F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T AR¥ET T
In the PRC Ao E R
— medium-term leases —HHRE 240,377 258,076
Representing: THIE
Buildings BF 111,313 122,718
Interests in leasehold land held for own EEHRECEALTH
use under operating leases HEREE 129,064 135,358
240,377 258,076
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-XE+ZA=+-HLEFE(RBEHBI AARBTHEMN)

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 9 ME-FERRBRHEE
+ it (%)

AND LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)

(c) Assets held under finance leases

At 31 December 2016, the net book value of buildings held
under finance leases of the Group was RMB94,945,000
(2015: RMB102,449,000). The leases do not include
contingent rentals. The buildings are situated in the PRC
and held under medium-term land use rights.

(c)

MEHERAZEE

RIBE-—RE+ZA=+—8 ' K&
EREEEEFCREEAARY
94,945,000t (ZE—HF : AR
102,449,0007T) - WHEW ~EIESR
RIEE - BFNUATE > WELHEL
WiFE AEEE -

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 10 B &EE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®T AREEF T
Cost: R

At 1 January and 31 December R—BA—BE+=ZA=+—H 237,250 237,250

Accumulated amortisation/and Rit#e REESSE:

impairment losses:

At 1 January n—A—H 70,769 56,103
Charge for the year FERER 10,250 10,838
Impairment losses (notes 3 and 9(a)) WAEE 1A (MIzE3K%9(a)) 10,663 3,828
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 91,682 70,769
Net book value: BRMEE : 145,568 166,481

Intangible assets relate to operating lease agreements
acquired in the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and 2012.
The fair value on acquisition was determined based on a
valuation report prepared by independent third party valuers
and comparison of the market rental rates at the dates of
acquisition and the estimated present value of payments
due under the lease contracts entered into by the acquired
subsidiaries. The intangible assets are amortised using the
straight-line method over the remaining lease terms which vary
from 10 to 30 years.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Distribution

and store operating costs” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-EZ-AF+-A=Z+-HLEFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

11 GOODWILL 11 58
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T AR®F T
Cost: i N
At 1 January and 31 December R—B—HBER+ZA=+—H 2,962,782 2,962,782
Accumulated impairment losses: R HEEE
At 1 January R—A—H (51,004) (51,004
Impairment losses (note 3) BEEE (MEE3) (257,526) -
At 31 December W+=ZB=+—H (308,530) (51,004
Carrying amount: PRMEE :
At 31 December Rt+=ZA=+—H 2,654,252 2,911,778

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the following three groups of CGUs,
identified according to region of operation of the Group:

BERECRSEAEURENR

BEBZIBDREAEELEEBHIEA
LT =EARREELESEN -

2016 2015

—E—-XKE —E—TAF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR T AR¥T T

East China Region ERIE 2,526,847 2,784,373
South China Region EEihE 124,007 124,007
North China Region b ih = 3,398 3,398
2,654,252 2,911,778
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

11 GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of each of the above CGUs is
determined based on value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
relating to the discount rate, long-term growth rates, and
the expected changes to gross margin and store operating
and administrative expenses. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a one-year period, which are
extrapolated up to the following ten years by using estimated
growth rates of -3.8% to 2.3% per annum (2015: 0% to 5% per
annum) for the East China Region and 4.7% to 5% per annum
(2015: 3.5% to 5% per annum) for the South China Region,
respectively. The forecasts are extrapolated beyond ten years
based on estimated long-term growth rates of 2% (2015: 2%)
per annum. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term
growth rates for the business in which the CGU operates. The
pre-tax discount rate of 13.5% (2015: 11%) used reflects the
current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGUs. Changes in gross margin and
store operating and administrative expenses are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

Impairment loss recognised during the year ended
31 December 2016 relates to the Group’s operations located
in the East China Region. As the group of CGUs in respect of
the East China Region has reduced to its recoverable amount
of RMB2,526,847,000, any adverse change in the assumptions
used in the calculation of recoverable amount would result in
further impairment losses.
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BEDEEZMEE REAERE - £7
PEEKEHERER o APME o kS
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Bit ks —FHPKEE  EREERE
MBI DB UEF-83.8%E2.3% (ZF
—EE  BEOWES%) RATHESY (=
E—FF BE35%E5%) 2 EE
EMERERRTE - BB TEWNEAD
HEMETEE2% (Z2E—R2F :2%)WE
AR R EMER - FIRANEREATR
HIRSEESBNMETENRIPERE -
HATBEIREB13.5% (ZE—HF 1 11%)
RBMBEETSFLESELEEVN S HE
BMEKRESELENEE AR - 5
BEREHEEER ST ERNBEER
RFEHER T BN -

BE-Z2—R"E+ZA=+—HIiEzZ&E
ER BEGEEIREAEEVRER
WECEKEE BHRERMEARR
CEABEN 2 ATREDHEERZE AR
2,526,847,0007T * PAFT & 7] YR [E] B4 &8 AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

HE-Z-AF+=A=T-ALEEBIARRN UARRTRER)

12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12 B A A ER
UTHREBETBRHEFEEEE - &
EFREIAEEHBEQREL - REH
RT3 2 B M 2 B R A 2 5] 2
BAREHE c MThEIBRPERLZ
BEREERAF

The following list contains only the particulars of the Group’s
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The Group’s effective interest in the
entities below are all held by subsidiaries of the Company. The
entities below are all companies established in the PRC with

limited liability.
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
INGES aREHRA rEEZENER
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RE “%-1% Z®¥-Rf C-E-iF
% %
TR NETERRMARL USD25,000,000% Tt USD25,000,000% 7t 100 100
Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (H&1)
B NEREHRTERAR RMBA K #19,000,000%7  RMBA K 19,000,000 100 100
Xian Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (HEE1)
BNFNETEERTARAR USD5,000,000% Jt/ USD5,000,0003 7t/ 100 100
Zhengzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. USD4,922,924% 7t USD4,922,9243 Tt
(note 1) (FfzE1)
EEZNENEHBTARLA USD6,500,000% 7t USDS,500,000% 7t 100 100
Qingdao Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K1)
ENFNETEERTERAA USD48,000,000% Tt USD48,000,0005 o 100 100
Guangzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K1)
WESNEEEERETERDA USD12,000,000% 7t USD12,000,000% 7t 100 100
Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 3) (K &3)
FUTEESEEHBERERRARAT RMBA K #3,000,000%  RMBA 3,000,000 100 100
Foshan Nanhai Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 1) (1)
Development Co., Ltd.
EREHEHERRERAA RMBA R #29,500,0007c  RMBA K #29,500,0007 100 100
Guangdong Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 1) (FF&E1)
Development Co., Ltd.
LEGVETEERTERAR USD180,000,000% 7t/ USD180,000,000% 7t/ 100 100
Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. USD137,200,000% 7t USD132,200,000% 7t
(note 1) (K1)
LEREBNTOERLR RMBA K #25,000,000%7  RMBA K #25,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Changfa Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Fif&E1)
FERERTERAR RMBA K#10,000,0007t RMB.A K#10,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Yilian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (H3E4)
FERERTERAR RMB A K #60,000,000t RMBA K%60,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Cailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (fifz£4)
BRRERTERAT RMB A K #500,0007 RMB A & #500,0007% 100 100
Nantong Tonglian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (ffz*4)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

12 B2 Rz (F)

(Continued)
Group’s
Name of companies Registered and paid up capital effective interest
INGES aMREHRA REBENER
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-NE —E-1 —BE-RE ZE-IE
% %
ELZEETERAT RMBA E%10,000,0000 RMBA K#10,000,0007C 100 100
Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (Fii5t4)
LEEEETERAR RMBA K %13,500,000%  RMBA K #13,500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Yalian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (K 4)
FEEERTERAR RMBA K#13,500,0007t RMBA K#13,500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Jialian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (R 1)
i NEEREEREABRAF RMBAK%8,949,000%  RMBAK#8,949,000% 100 100
Foshan C.P. Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (note 4,5) (K4~ 5)
NEBRE G EEEBRAT USD16,800,000% USD16,800,000% o 100 100
C.P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. (note 1,5) (&1~ 5)
LEERNAERAR RMB A & #1,000,0005t RMBA & #1,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. (note 2,5) (H&F2» 5)
LENBESERRERARA - RMBAR#10,000,0007 - 80
Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods Co., Ltd. (note 3,5) (&3 5)
BRREEFEARAA - RMBA & #600,0007C - 100
Xian Delian Trading Co., Ltd. (note 2,5) (Ki&2+ 5)
ESEEEHBNARAR RMBA K %14,500,000%  RMBA K 14,500,000 100 100
Wuxi Ailian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (HEE1)
AREERHTARDF RMBA K #14,500,000t RMBA K#14,500,0007 100 100
Hefei Ailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K1)
RDNEBHAERDT RMBA K#14,500,0000  RMBA K #14,500,0007C 100 100
Changsha Chulian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1) (H&1)
BNREEHETERAR RMBA K %6,000,000%  RMBA K %6,000,0007 100 100
Xuzhou Yalian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 4) (K F4)
WL NEERBHERAF RMBA K#10,000,0007t RMBA K#10,000,0007 100 100
Zhanjiang C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (ft4)
ENPEEXEDERAT RMBA R #3,000,000%  RMBA K 3,000,007 100 100
Guangzhou C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (K F4)
WEETRE NEERBHTARAF RMBA K #20,000,000t RMBA K#20,000,0007 100 100
Shantou Jinping Dongxia C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (fitz4)
WERGRL NEERETERAF RMBA R #3,000,000%  RMBA E3,000,000% 100 100
Shantou Chaoyang Mianbei C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (f4)
BINEERETERAR RMB A K #10,000,0007 - 100 -
Yangjiang C.P. Lotus Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 4) (fitF4)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

M
@

(©)]
(4)

O]

These are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

The equity interests of these two companies are held by individual
nominees on behalf of the Company. These companies are
domestic enterprises in the PRC legally owned by PRC nationals.
Pursuant to the various agreements in place between the Group
and the nominees, the Group operates the business owned by the
nominee companies and in return is entitled to all the profit or loss
from the operation of the nominee companies. As the Group bears
the risks and rewards of its operation of the nominee companies,
the directors of the Company, after taking legal advice, consider
that the Group has effective control over these enterprises.
Therefore the financial results and positions of these enterprises
have been consolidated into the Group since their respective
dates of establishment.

These are Sino-foreign joint ventures established in the PRC.

These are domestic enterprises in the PRC. Yangjiang C.P. Lotus
Supermarket Co., Ltd. is newly established in the PRC in 2016.

C.P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. is engaged in the
provision of management services to subsidiaries within the
Group. Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. and Foshan C.P.
Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. are engaged in the
provision of logistic services. Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods
Co., Ltd. and Xian Delian Trading Co., Ltd. are engaged in the
provision of sourcing products. All other companies listed above
are involved in the operation of hypermarket stores in the PRC.

On 6 July 2016 and 14 September 2016, the Group disposed
its entire equity interests in Xian Delian Trading Co., Ltd. and
Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods Co., Ltd., respectively (note 31).

12 B2 B ER (&)

(4)

O]

HERIIEBERSE -

MR AR 2 RAERHZAREARS
DNEFE  WERARGHPEBAARAGE
FEZFERGLE  RIBASEENE
ABRTN 2 & T - REBEKE Eﬁﬁ
DNEAFEZEBRRERESAEARE
Zﬁﬁ/ﬂjﬁﬁ°mﬁ$$lﬁﬁﬁﬁ
E%LREQTZH@&Wm ARFE
EREZEEEERR  RBAEEERE
MEZEFIER LS EM EhEs
BREERMRREEZBEZRIBFEER
REER -

EABRFERLZHIEERE -

WERNPE 2 AR B o (5T MNEETE
%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁig—)—\iﬁ’wﬂﬁiﬁz
FOFE

NEERLCEEBERAT  AAKEE
TZHEBLRREESERE - J:E??;ﬁ%
RERATRGILT NEEREEEZEAE
PRABRENDRRKE - £ hﬁE%FE
BERAGARAREEZE ZERATRE
HRiEEm e IEEM L2 AREAFTE
RERBBHHERK -

REZB-RFLARNBRZZE—XRFNA
THOH AEESHEALEEERE
RARARLEE NEESERBARITZ
2 RARES (MEE31) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-XE+ZA=+-HLEFE(RBEHBI AARBTHEMN)

13 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR 13 ANYMEHEESR
PREMISES
2016 2015
ZE—X —E-HF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR%T T AR T T
At 1 January m—A—H 33,701 49,504
Charged to profit or loss for the year FERIIZZER (17,462) (15,803)
At 31 December W+=—B=+—H 16,239 33,701
Represented by: DHIB
Non-current portion JE BN HA 2R 15 10,851 20,852
Current portion B HA =6 47 5,388 12,849
16,239 33,701
These amounts represent prepaid rentals for hypermarket HEHBENAERRLERBBR 2ENHE
stores operated by the Group. g%
14 INVENTORIES 14 &

All inventories as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015 are trading merchandise. The analysis of the amount of

inventories recognised as an expense is as follows:

ERZZE—R"E+ZA=+—HEKZE
—AF+ZRA=+—-HB2BEEHEEET
BoERAEIHZEFEEREINNOT

2016 2015

—E—-XRF —E-HEF

RMPB’ 00_0 RMB’ 000

ARET T ARET T

Carrying amount of inventories sold EHFEZREE 8,323,946 8,813,853
Write-down of inventories FEZRE 23,202 15,195
8,347,148 8,829,048
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

™

BE-Z-XE+ZA=+-HEFE(BRBEHBI AARBTHEN)

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

15 €E N HMBEWRE

2016 2015

—E-RE| ZE2-HF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

Note AR%T T AR®F T

Trade receivables & E FEWRIE i) 86,498 38,767

Other receivables H o pE g 2008 (i 315,359 302,881
Amounts due from related companies FEUR#HRE % FE (i)

(note 30(b)) (H£E30(b)) 387,206 319,648

Derivative financial instruments fTEEMIA (i) 41,239 75,770

830,302 737,066

All of the trade and other receivables apart from rental
deposits of the Group amounting to RMB117,602,000
(2015: RMB96,951,000) are expected to be recovered

within one year.

Sales to retail customers are mainly made by cash or
credit cards. Credit terms of 30 to 90 days are offered to
related companies and corporate customers with ongoing

relationship.

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables due from third parties and related
companies, based on the invoice date (or date of revenue

() KBREEZES ARY117,602,000T
(ZE—H1%F : ARK¥96,951,0007T)
I EAEEzEEREMERR

HEHRR-FAkE -

ZEERCHETEURESNEAR
R =TENTHZARBREHRT
BRNERRZHBLERARRF -

REE=ZERBEBELXEERY
FIENRRIER 2 BE  BREADY
(HAWAEREH  FBE) - R

recognition, if earlier) and net of allowance for doubtful EHIRZERBRONFOT :
debts, is as follows:

2016 2015
—EB-KR¥ —E-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR T AR®T T
Within 30 days =+HR 174,641 144177
31 to 60 days =+—HZx~TH 54,597 94,117
61 to 90 days At—HBEA+H 50,928 479
Over 90 days (note) BB+ A (KE) 110,948 2,753
391,114 241,526
Note: Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, MEE: RAREHARE S IELEES
RMB89,300,000 trade receivables due from related TEIEERRAREBAARYE
companies had been received, which was all included in 89,300,0007T @ 7£ BA L BR R 29 47
o 2ABBATAZIRRER

over 90 days category in the above ageing analysis.

C.P. Lotus Corporation |M&&7EH R
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(Continued)

Included in the Group’s above trade receivables
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB163,843,000 (2015: RMB5,225,000) which are past
due at the reporting date with ageing analysis as follows:

15 &

BN H B WK IR ()

AEBLMzEERKREEECSE
W EEES X AR%163,843,000
T(ZZE—FHF: AR #¥5,225,000
7T)  RIEBZREDSHOT :

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-REF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR| AR%®TR

Overdue w R 52,250 1,993
31 to 60 days =+—HZAXTH 76,691 479
61 to 90 days At—HBZhTH 34,229 876
Over 90 days Hid L+ H 673 1,877
163,843 5,225

The directors consider no impairment provision is required
in respect of the above trade receivables as they are due
from either related companies controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholder or counterparties that have a good
track record with the Group.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had a USD non-delivered
forward exchange contract with a notional amount of
USD139,770,000 (2015: USD170,200,000). The forward
exchange contract is recognised as “derivative financial
instruments” at its net fair value of RMB41,239,000
(2015: RMB75,770,000). The forward exchange contract
has maturity of less than one year after the end of the
reporting period, and the amount is expected to be
recovered within one year. The fair value of the derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period is
determined based on the valuation techniques disclosed in
note 26(e).

Annual Report 2016 & #&

(i)

ESRAEFTY L e BRIFURR
RAEEREG AUZHEDERRE
BRRRZES 2 HEEEREAEEE
REFFRLCEZIRZ S ZBWFIE -

RIE—RE+ZA=+—8 K&
BB —BEEAN$E A139,770,000
EXrx (ZF—HF 170,200,000
T ZERSREEZAINIERHE S
o NERBENARTFEAARY
41,239,000t (ZE—HF : AR¥
75,770,0007T) R A [ITE S H
TE| - IERPEONRELRR
HERBEON—FREE R L 2ZETE S
R—FRKE  BEHREHKR  074E
SRI AN AREEBETIENF26(e)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

16 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

At 31 December 2016, RMB46,174,000 (2015: RMB49,450,000)
of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to banks as
guarantees for the issuance of bank accepted bills for
payments to suppliers.

16 SHEFRITERK

EZER-

In addition, at 31 December 2016, RMB13,371,000 (2015:
RMB9,986,000) of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to
banks for the issuance of letters of guarantee to landlords of
certain subsidiaries.

R=ZFB-A"E+-A=+t—-H &xKH
ZIRITHERBE ARYL6,174,00008 (=&
— R AR%49,450,0005T) © K| F
IRITERREER M HRITRAE

o RZE—-XRE+=ZA=+—H:' A
R#13,371,000t (ZE—HF : AR
9,986,0007t) 2 AKBEIRTFREIEIFF
RITUBETHEBAT ZEREBIERE

o
17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 RERFASERH

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E-FE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AR T

Cash at bank and in hand and cash and RESHBEMRIBR>

cash equivalents in the consolidated RITHEFRRSH

statement of financial position HeRREEH 204,920 165,842
Bank overdrafts (note 19) RITEX (MFE19) (18,000) -

Cash and cash equivalents in the RZEHREREREZ
consolidated cash flow statement HeRBEEEH 186,920 165,842

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounting to
RMB12,543,000 (2015: RMB19,618,000) are non-interest
bearing.

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19,618,0007T) °

AEFEMHEZRERESEHEAAR
#12,543,000C (ZE—HFE: ARY

18 EB R HMEMNKE

2016 2015

—F-AEF | ZT-EF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARET T ARET T

Notes payable B REE 128,369 146,618

Trade creditors EERENRIE 2,374,897 2,322 090

Advance receipts from customers TAEWERE 2 E 458,165 481,291

Other creditors and accrued charges HihEARERENSER 783,694 675,167
Amounts due to related companies EHEBEENRIE

(note 30(b)) (P ZE30(b)) 140,419 139,565

3,885,544 3,764,731

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year. Z o

FEEERHMEMNRERIR-FRE

C.P. Lotus Corporation |M&&7EH R
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

(Continued)

Advance receipts from customers represent the unutilised
balance of prepaid card sold by the Group.

The above balances with related parties are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Included in the Group’s trade and other payables are trade
creditors and notes payable of RMB2,503,266,000 (2015:
RMB2,468,708,000) with the following ageing analysis, based
on the invoice date as at the end of the reporting period:

18 € ER HMENFKE (&)

AWEE 2 RER/RREEHFEERNE 2K
£ FERER ©

LLEFABEMBEA L AR HESAEIE
B ARMERRERERE -

AEBECzEEREMENHEREELEER
FHREBREMNEZE AKY2,503,266,000
T (ZE -1 F: AK¥2,468,708,000
U)o REHRERRBEZZBHIN

W
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR| AR¥T
Uninvoiced purchases REFEBECRE 1,008,634 996,750
Within 30 days =tHR 1,149,138 1,220,070
31 to 60 days =+—ZXx+H 98,280 83,436
61 to 90 days At—ZhA+AH 52,861 55,535
More than 90 days BBEht+H 194,353 112,917
2,503,266 2,468,708

At 31 December 2016, the bank loans and overdrafts were

19 RTERREX
R=B-AF+=A=+—0 RITEX

repayable as follows: RBELZZBRBMOT :
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AR®F T
Within 1 year —FER 222,900 267,118
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMER - 322,371
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBEFR - 452,489
- 774,860
222,900 1,041,978

Annual Report 2016 & #&
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

19 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

(Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts
are unsecured and secured/guaranteed as follows:

19

RITERKEX (F)

R-ZE-—RE+ZA=+—H0  KEEZ
RMITERREZABIKAREEA ER
M

2016 2015
—EB—RE —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T AR®F T

Bank loans RITER
- Unsecured — 3K 4R 204,900 -
- Secured by assets held by the Group - UAREB 2 EERF - 1,041,978
Unsecured overdrafts IR ESL 18,000 -
222,900 1,041,978

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has drawn down floating
rate bank loans and overdrafts of RMB204,900,000 and
RMB18,000,000, respectively, bearing interest at six to twelve-
month PBOC Rate multiplied by 1.10 to 1.13, being 4.35% to
4.92% per annum.

At 31 December 2015, the Group has drawn down floating
rate syndicated bank loans led by The Siam Commercial Bank
Public Company Limited of USD160,320,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,041,978,000), bearing interest at three-month LIBOR
plus 3.50% per annum, which are secured by the share capital
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. These bank loans were
originally repayable with instalment repayments scheduled
through December 2018. In December 2016, these loans were
fully repaid.

20 LOANS FROM CONTROLLING

SHAREHOLDER

At 31 December 2016, the Group has borrowed floating rate
loans of USD139,770,000 (equivalent to RMB971,877,000)
from its controlling shareholder, C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment
Company Limited (“CPH”), bearing interest at three-month
LIBOR plus 4.50% to 5.65% per annum. The loans from
the controlling shareholder are unsecured and repayable in
December 2018.

20

N-ZZE-—RE+ZA=+—B ' XEED
REFEFRBITERRES  DHIAA
2 #204,900,0007T & A E #18,000,000
T FREAREZETZEAFTRARRT
FZEFU1.10E1.13 BNEFE 54.35%
F4.92% o

R-EBE-RE+-A=+—H Xx&E
2 £ B B The Siam Commercial Bank
Public Company Limited& & 2 28R =
$REE 160,320,000 7T (FHER AR
1,041,978,0007t) @ Z =18 B mBERITE
EREMEREIL50%) » UAQNFETF
B AR ZBRAERI - WERTERHE
BEERZE-—NFE+ZARoHEE It
ERTEFER-ZZE—RFET+TA28E

= o
BAERRRER

R-ZZE-—R"E+ZA=+—H ' &x5H
EHWEBHZERKRKC.P. Holding (BVI)
Investment Company Limited ([CPH )
RBHZEFZE K A139,770,000% 7T,
(HE W AR 971,877,000t ]) @ &=
BB eBRITEEFEMERRL50%ZE
5.65%sT B o ILIERRRERABIKAR
R=Z-NFE+=-HZH-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

21 OTHER LOANS

At 31 December 2016, other loans were repayable as follows:

1 HE R

W-ZB—AE+-A=+—R EER
ZEEEMT :

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-HEF

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARMT T AR®F

Within 1 year —FR - 43,500
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEA 46,446 -
46,446 43,500

At 31 December 2016, third-party loans of USD6,656,000 RZE—RE+ZA=+—8B BIFE

(equivalent to RMB46,446,000) (2015: USD6,656,000
(equivalent to RMB43,500,000)) are unsecured and bear interest
at three-month LIBOR plus 1.50% per annum. These third-party
loans were originally repayable on 31 December 2016 but were
agreed by both parties on that date to extend the maturity date
to 31 December 2018 with all other terms under the original
agreement remaining unchanged. Accordingly, these third-
party loans were reclassified into non-current liabilities as at 31

December 2016.

22 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At 31 December 2016, the Group had obligations under finance

leases repayable as follows:

22

—752§ £6,656,000% 7T (HHER AR
4644600075)(— — A £ : 6,656,000
7_5)($E=EFAAEM435000007_E)IH
%fﬁ# =R X nmBRITRZEREM
E%u% 50% WEE=ZSERRINRZ

—R"EF+ZA=+—HEEZ BEFR
EZHH%‘H%‘U,HEEIEi_?—)\iﬂ-—
B=1+—B BHET2HEEMKER
ﬁ%?@oﬁt'%@_g—,ﬁJr A
EE=—HERCESEAK

[1]
4
|
m
?

MEHEHEEME

R-B-—A"E+-A=+—-R0 FEEZ
EAMERAESENT :

2016 2015
—E-XREF —E-HEF
Present Present
value of the Total | value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHEE BREE Eﬁ%ﬁ‘;ﬁ Ei_fﬁﬂi‘ﬁ
FTRRE SR B FREE Bt
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETRT AR®TR| ARETR AR®TR
Within 1 year —F R 11,345 26,035 9,895 25,620
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR 12,909 26,405 11,345 26,035
After 2 years but within 5 years R EEERFR 48,626 80,450 43,307 79,641
After 5 years L% 80,904 96,158 99,132 123,372
________________________________________________________________ 142,439 203,013 [ 153,784 229,048
153,784 229,048 163,679 254,668
Less: Total future interest B ARRFE
expenses M5 (75,264) (90,989)
Present value of lease obligations HESF 2R E 153,784 163,679
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

23 &1

BENESHAERSNKRLEE  BEE
THIEIRE ~ 5 R KEE T HERR
ARZEHARAMEEREE 2 57F L - BiE2

23 PROVISIONS

Provisions have been made for the directors’ best estimate
of the expected costs associated with terminations benefits,
cancellation of certain store opening projects, store closures

and disputes with certain suppliers. Provisions are summarised MEmT
as follows:
Termination Supplier
benefits claims Others Total
EHRIEEHE HEDRE H “A %R
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBETT ARBTRT ARE®TRT AR®T:R
At 1 January 2015 R=-ZZ—HRF—H—H - 471 - 471
Provision incurred BECEE - 875 - 875
Provision utilised BE2FEA - (245) - (245)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZE—-AE+=A
=+—AH - 1,101 - 1,101
At 1 January 2016 R=-ZE-—XF—-HF—H - 1,101 - 1,101
Provision incurred BECE 44,640 6,148 7,933 58,721
Provision utilised BEZFE (30,177) - (1,576) (31,753)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE— —A
=+- 14,463 7,249 6,357 28,069

The provision balance at 31 December 2016 is expected to be

utilised within one year.

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

financial position represents:

REZZB-ARFE+ZA=+—-RB2BHEHRE
AR —FAEM -

Frig®i

UBEHBERRBEERAZ

(a) HEMBRRBERAZNBBIAT :

2016 2015

—E-XR¥ —E-HF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR TR | AR¥T

Balance at the beginning of the year FEMNEER 20,402 14,592
Under/(over)-provision in respect of FEERZE(BHE)

prior years B 4,560 (3,851)

Provision for PRC income tax for the year FERNFEFTEHREE 28,097 31,733

PRC income tax paid 21 B B IE (35,236) (22,072)

17,823 20,402

C.P. Lotus Corporation |M&&7EH R
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

UNEEMBERRERRAZ
Frig®i ()

(b) ERRBZELEHRBREERERE

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

RENEBRBNGS M BRRER 2
EEBHEE (BE) 2BEBH

position and the movements during the year are as follows: REESNT :
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own use
Property, under
plantand  operating Intangible
Tax losses  equipment leases assets Others Total
nx. EEHEZ
EE BERLH
HEESR k&R HEER EFEE Hit ag
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR ARMTR ARBTR AR%TR ARETR ARMTR
Deferred tax arising from: EEHBELH :
At 1 January 2015 W=Z-1¥-F-A 10,536 5,617 (10,302) (45,287 18,815 (20,621)
Credited/(charged) to A/ (BI%) 28B5 (M
profit or loss (note 5(a)) 5(a)) 5,933 (502) 943 3,667 (383) 9,658
At 31 December 2015 R=B-EE+ZA=1-H 16,469 5,115 (9,359) (41,620) 18,432 (10,963)
At 1 January 2016 RZF-~E-A-H 16,469 5,115 (9,359) (41,620 18,432 (10,963)
(Charged)/credited to (5I%) /st AEB#H
profit or loss (note 5(a)) (MiEE5(a) (840) (407) 942 5,228 4,845 9,768
At 31 December 2016 St s 15,629 4,708 (8,417) (36,392) 23,277 (1,195)
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(b)

(c)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
(Continued)

An analysis of the net deferred tax assets and liabilities is
set out as follows:

UNEEMBERRBERAZ
Frig®i ()

(b) ERRBZELERBEERAE (H)

EERBEERBEFR MU

'|T
2016 2015
—E—-R —_E-FHF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR| AR®TRT

Net deferred tax assets BEBIBEEFHE 35,647 31,262
Net deferred tax liabilities EEHEEEFEE (36,842) (42,225)
(1,195) (10,963)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the items below as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which these items can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.

(c) RERBZELERBAEE

L3 IE B ARRE 2 IEE R EE A H A 4
AR ARATTREESABEHKE R
ERER R ANEE LMER R
RAERBLZIEF o

2016 2015
—E—RE —EBE-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTRT| AR®TR

Tax losses BRI 18 751,692 692,236
Deductible temporary differences AR 2 = AR 277,623 120,115
1,029,315 812,351

Excluding the tax losses of the Company which do not
expire, the tax losses of its subsidiaries established in the
mainland China can be carried forward up to five years
from the year in which the loss originated, and will expire
in the following years:

BRAQNFZHIBERRBRHAESN - BiE
BEIRNEREELEFEERZURTIFRME
Ao WRT P FHEIE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR | AR®TR

2016 —E-—RXE = 131,562
2017 —Z2—+& 206,576 206,576
2018 —E-NF 150,211 150,211
2019 —E—-RF 61,596 61,596
2020 —E-EE 116,677 113,185
2021 —E-—F 185,555 =

720,615 663,130
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R B EE

25 A - REERKRE
(a) EZBEABH 22

REB 2 REERNESEARE DK
WY R R A BR 2 I AVFAES - BRAR
ERBZHHR - AQNBZEHENE
BARSBD FNEFR2EBFER

individual components of equity between the beginning BT
and the end of the year are set out below:
Share
Share option Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
ROEE EBRERE ERAE RERA Lk
(Note (d)) (Note (d)) (Note (d)) (Note (b))
(M aE(d)) (Mz(d)) (MaE(d) (Ma£(b)
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2015 RZE-RF-A-H 1,836,932 53,841 (296,426) 507,564 2,101,911
Loss for the year FEEB - - - (418,767) (418,767)
Other comprehensive income Ht 2l - - 150,317 - 150,317
Total comprehensive income FEXEWEAH
fortheyear ... S T 180317 (418,767) (268,450)
Shares issued upon exercises of  {TEBREMETRA
_Shareoptions (Note o) (W&k) 929 G384 S T 42,388
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+ZA=1+-H 1,933,161 - (146,109) 88,797 1,875,849
At 1 January 2016 RZE-RE-F-H 1,933,161 - (146,109) 88,797 1,875,849
Profit for the year EEEA - - - 73,151 73,151
Other comprehensive income Ht2ERE - - 154,160 - 154,160
Total comprehensive income EEXANEAH
fortheyear ... S T 194160 73fel 227311
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=+-H 1,933,161 - 8,051 161,948 2,103,160
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Dividends

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015, nor has any dividend been

(b) BB

Q:I'_— =

—RERZE

25 AR - EERERE (8)

—h%¥+Z=A

=t—HLEZFER  #BEKZNE

proposed since the reporting date. BRERE > YERSEEEEZRR
BAEMRE -
Authorised and issued share capital (c) ZERBRITRA
2016 and 2015
—E-RERZZE-IF
No. of shares
iz B
(' 000) HK$(' 000)
(+) FE T
Authorised: BIE s i
Ordinary shares at par value of SRMEEC.02BTZEER
HK$0.02 each 34,000,000 680,000
Series A convertible preference shares & R E{E0.028 T 2
at par value of HK$0.02 each AZ T T IR B ST R 2,000,000 40,000
Series B convertible preference shares SR E{E0.02/8 Tt 2
at par value of HK$0.02 each BZ 5 Al BR 8 SE AR 4,000,000 80,000
Series C convertible preference shares & R E{E0.028 T 2
at par value of HK$0.02 each CRFI T RE %R 4,500,000 90,000
Series D convertible preference shares & IR E{H0.0278 Jt =2
at par value of HK$0.02 each DZ B AT # BB £ IR 2,500,000 50,000
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-TF
No. of No. of
shares shares
% P &1
(’000) RMB’ 000 ('000) RMB’ 000
(F) AR TR (F) AR®Trx
Issued and fully paid: ERTREAR:
Ordinary shares =@R
At 1 January n—B— 11,019,072 215,159 10,408,272 205,526
Shares issued under share R IERR 1 ‘|‘2J
option scheme BITZ2BR4D - - 610,800 9,633
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 11,019,072 215,159 11,019,072 215,159
Convertible preference shares —Hﬁ’ﬂxﬁﬁ
At 1 January/31 December —A-
__________________________________ tSASt-8 | moeesto 190867 | 11208810 190567
Total at 31 December Rt+t=ZBA=+-H
2% 22,317,882 405,726 22,317,882 405,726
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BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the total convertible
preference shares in issue include 1,518,807,075 Series
A convertible preference shares, 3,897,110,334 Series B
convertible preference shares, 3,671,509,764 Series C
convertible preference shares and 2,211,382,609 Series D
convertible preference shares, respectively.

All the convertible preference shares are non-voting
shares. The holders of these shares are entitled to receive
the same dividends as the holders of ordinary shares.
In addition, the holders of these shares have the right
to convert any preference share into the Company’s
ordinary shares at any time at the conversion price at the
rate of 1 to 1 each subject to the minimum public float
requirement as set out under the Listing Rules being
maintained. Adjustments to the conversion price are only
made upon dilutive and other events which are related to
the Company issuing new shares or convertible debts.

On 21 May 2015, 610,800,660 ordinary shares of
par value of HK$0.02 each were issued at a price of
HK$0.108 per share (equivalent to RMBO0.085 per share)
to settle all the outstanding options granted on 24 May
2005. Net proceeds from the shares issued amounted
to HK$65,966,000 (equivalent to RMB52,021,000) out
of which HK$12,216,000 (equivalent to RMB9,633,000)
and HK$53,750,000 (equivalent to RMB42,388,000) were
recorded in share capital and share premium, respectively.
In addition, the share option reserve of RMB53,841,000
originally resulted from the issuance of the respective
share options was transferred to share premium
accordingly.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
share premium is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(i)  Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the difference
between the Group’s share of the fair value of the
associate’s net assets and the Group’s interest
in associate at the date the associate became a
subsidiary of the Group.
(iii) Share option reserve
The share option reserve represents the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 1(s)(ii).
The share option reserve of RMB53,841,000 was
transferred to share premium upon the exercise of the
respective share options on 21 May 2015 as set out in
note 25(c).
(iv) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of entities outside the PRC. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(w).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was HK$2,358,326,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,095,109,000) (2015: HK$2,276,932,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,021,958,000)) as computed in accordance with
the Company Law of the Cayman Islands.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can provide returns for equity holders
and benefits for other stakeholders and secure access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity holder’s return that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions. The Group also monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio which is calculated by
dividing loans from controlling shareholder, bank loans,
overdraft and other loans by total equity.
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BE-E-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSAERBI UARBTREN)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management monitors the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk in respect of trade receivables is limited as the
balances mainly arise from credit card sales. Credit terms
of 30 to 90 days are offered in rare cases to corporate
customers with ongoing relationship. The Group grants 60
days to WSL and its related entities for store merchandise
sales to them.

As set out in note 30(b), the Group had receivables due
from WSL and its related entities and other subsidiaries
and associates of Charoen Pokphand Group Company
Limited (“CPG”), the ultimate holding company, amounting
to approximately RMB387.2 million (2015: RMB319.6
million) as at 31 December 2016, which represents
approximately 46.6% (2015: 43.4%) of the Group’s total
trade and other receivables. Given CPG is the Company’s
ultimate holding company, the directors consider that
these amounts are fully recoverable.

Except for the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk on trade and other receivables.
Cash and deposits are placed with banks which the
directors consider have sound credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement
of financial position. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-F-AF+-A=t-ALFE(RSERBN UARBTRERD)
26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 26 cRIEAMREER A AE(E)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b)

REBETER

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations
and obtain adequate finance from external parties or its
ultimate holding company to meet its debt obligations and
committed future capital expenditures as and when they
fall due.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB1,825.0 million (2015:
RMB1,910.1 million).

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have
considered the cash flow forecast of the Group for the
twelve months ending 31 December 2017, which was
prepared based on historical cash requirements of the
Group which may impact the operations of the Group
during the next twelve-month period. The directors are of
the opinion that the assumptions which are included in the
cash flow forecast are reasonable. However, as with all
assumptions in regard to future events, these are subject
to inherent limitations and uncertainties and some or all of
these assumptions may not be realised.

Based on the cash flow forecast prepared and unused
bank facilities on hand, the directors have determined that
adequate liquidity exists to finance the working capital
and capital expenditure requirements of the Group for the
forthcoming year.

FEBRBESHRREEBARE
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IFRERLERDB 2 2HRE
BNAEHzEBRRREEE ZER
P ZBEN °
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

The following are the contractual maturities of financial
including estimated interest payments and
excluding the impact of netting agreements:

liabilities,

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

26 TRIEREER A AEE)

(b) RBESRMR (F)

UTHERaE s ZOMR - 8F G
ARENRRMBREE R 2R

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ZNFRRRERL
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
1yearor  lessthan  lessthan  More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
-FRy -FRE  WERE
2HH WER LER LR L BHEE
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARETR AR%T:n
31 December 2016 E-RETZA=t-
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3Fﬂil§2§rﬂﬁfﬁ
Bank loans and overdrafts BTERRES (230,550) - - - (230,550) 222,900
Loans from controlling shareholder B ERREEH (58,575)  (1,036,233) - - (1,094,808) 971,877
Other loans EthEH (1,153) (47,331) - - (48,484) 46,446
Notes payable, creditors and EAEE EATER
accrued charges BOAMGER (3,745,125) - - - (3,745,125 3,745,125
Amounts due to related companies i B R EHE (140,419) - - - (140419) 140,419
Obligations under finance leases ~ BEREEF (26,035) (26,405) (80,450) (96,158)  (229,048) 153,784
(4,201,857)  (1,109,969) (80,450) (96,158)  (5,488,434) 5,280,551
31 December 2015 “E-BE+-A=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities #NEIEZ%@EF
Bank loans BTERH (307,131)  (350,858)  (466,413) - (1,124,402 1,041,978
Other loans HiER (44,418) - - - (44,418) 43,500
Notes payable, creditors and BHEE  EAFER
accrued charges ERANER (3,625,166) - - - (3,625166) 3,625,166
Amounts due to related companies  E{TIRE L E5E (139,565) - - - (139,565 139,565
Obligations under finance leases HEREEHR (25,620) (26,035) (79,641)  (123,373)  (254,669) 163,679
(4,141,900  (376,893)  (546,054)  (123,373)  (5,188,220) 5,013,888
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (c)

(i)

Interest rate profile

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, bank loans and
overdrafts, loans from controlling shareholder, other
loans, and obligations under finance leases.

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net borrowings (interest-bearing liabilities
less interest-bearing financial investments excluding
cash held for short-term working capital purposes) at
the end of the reporting period.

26 cRIEREER A AER)

A 2R & b
() FIEHX

AEEFEEZNZRBRERR - =
ZEEFAEECRERRAES
B BEFZRITER  RITE
MREX  BYERRRER
HtERKMEHRESE -

TERHAFIARERBEHRR 2 F
&35 (M BB EHUR M S 855
RE (MBREREHEEESHE
MABEZRE)) 2 FRER -

2016 2015
—E-RF —2-1f
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate value interest rate value
BYA = BREE BHAE REE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR% TR ARET
Variable rate instruments: FEHAEIE :
Pledged bank deposits EEFAZBITEN 0.42% 59,545 1.04% 59,436
Cash and cash equivalents BR&RELEH 0.23% 192,377 0.38% 146,224
Bank loans and overdrafts $RITERRER 4.60% (222,900) 4.10% (1,041,978)
Loans from controlling R ERBRER
shareholder 6.02% (971,877) - -
Other loans HitER 2.50% (46,446) 2.11% (43,500)
(989,301) (879,818)
Fixed rate instruments: BEFEIA:
Obligations under finance BERES(E
leases 9.8% - 10.03% (153,784) [9.8% - 10.03% (163,679)
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a change
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease the
Group’s net loss and retained profits by the amounts

26 TRIEREER A AEE)

A=EEE (&)
(i) SR T HT

R-ZZB-A"F+ZA=+—-8"
hEF R R Z100EERZE (H
A2 EZESTE) 8
mBAOAREE 2 R FERR

shown below: BaREBEOT :
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®F T AR¥ET T

Variable rate instrument FEHAEIA:

100 basis point increase 2 AN1001E & B 9,893 8,798
100 basis point decrease HA1001E EH B (9,893) (8,798)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2015.

(d) Currency risk

The directors consider that as the Group’s retail operations
are all based in the PRC, the Group is not exposed to
significant currency risk in its retail operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from bank
loans and loans from controlling shareholder held by
certain PRC subsidiaries, which are denominated in USD.
At 31 December 2016, the relevant loans amounted to
uSbD120,170,000 (2015: USD137,920,000). The Group
used a forward exchange contract to economically hedge
the currency risk of the above loans. Changes in the fair
value of the forward exchange contract are recognised in
profit or loss. The net fair value of the forward exchange
contract at 31 December 2016 is RMB41,239,000 (2015:
RMB75,770,000), which is recognised as “derivative
financial instruments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The forward exchange contract has
maturity of less than one year after the end of the reporting
period.
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BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(e)

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC
government may at its discretion restrict access to
foreign currencies for current account transactions in the
future. Changes in the foreign exchange control system
may prevent the Group from satisfying sufficient foreign
currency demand and the Group may not be able to pay
dividends in foreign currencies to its shareholders.

Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

At 31 December 2016, the Group has certain
derivative financial instruments - exchange forward
contract, which is measured at fair value. When
measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market observable data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in
level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3: significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are

not available.

The fair value measurement of the forward exchange
contract as at 31 December 2016 is categorised into
Level 2 fair value measurement and is determined
by discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the forward rate as at 31 December 2016
offered by issuance bank. The Group did not hold
any other financial assets and liabilities carried at fair
value as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair value as at
31 December 2016 and 2015.

27 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At 31 December 2016, total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

26 TRIEREER A AEE)

RAEGBEZEHEERE

),

REZZB-ARER-Z-RHF+Z
A=1t—H AKEzEHEE
REEEEARBEHRRNARZ
REEEEAAEITESTEAE
B o

>=

7TEEREZEE

REBEA

RZB-XRF+ZA=+—H ' FABH
ZEBHEZARREAERNRARE
LU

2016 2015

—E-XE| ZE-—EHHE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®TR| AR®TR

Within 1 year —FR 592,203 583,871
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERLFR 459,875 477,912
After 5 years LF#%E 9,637 13,034
1,061,715 1,074,817

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office
and store premises held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period up to 20 years, with an option
to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every 1 to 7 years to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
The store leases typically provide the Group with the ability
to cancel the leases within the lease period on payment of a
penalty and/or after a minimum period of leasing.

As lessor

Property rental income earned net of negligible outgoings
from subletting of the Group’s leased properties during the
year amounted to approximately RMB481,154,000 (2015:
RMB432,125,000).
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27 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessor (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as
follows:

27 € EHE 2 &L (E)
BHAA(E)
RZBE—XRFE+ZA=+—H ' FHHH

ZEBHEZ R RGREWHEERIEHALE
T :

2016 2015

—E-XE| Z=-EHF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR| AR®TR

Within 1 year —FR 183,760 190,133
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 216,267 121,254
After 5 years hFER® 51,026 45,165
451,053 356,552

The leases typically run for an initial period of 3 months to
2 years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. In addition to the minimum rental payments
disclosed above, the tenants have commitments to pay
additional rent of a proportion of turnover for certain sub-leased
properties if the turnover generated from those sub-leased
properties exceeds the predetermined levels. Contingent
rentals are not included in the above commitments as it is not
possible to estimate the amounts which may be payable.

28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

HE-RzIOBBRA=ZEREMF > AR
BEEMARRBEEEEEME -REM
RECREEENHI  HTO2ENEE
HEACEEEBBRE 2KFE  EP
AHEBEXR 2R THOHNEIN2HE
o ARKRBETEABABSSE UL
ZEEIRBELRES -

28 & A AKIE

RZB-—AREF+ZA=1+—0 RESH
BHMRERBE2ERAENT ¢

2016 2015

—E—XRE —E-FE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARET T AR¥ET T

Contracted for [EHES 8,766 59,849
Authorised but not contracted for EHtEERITH 832,632 840,034
841,398 899,883

All of the above capital commitments were made in respect of
the establishment of new hypermarket stores and renovation
work on existing stores.

LI AEAREEIG BRI AEBEH R
REAER BN ITREMRE o
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29 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
a Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the
employee make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ gross earnings, subject to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per month per employee. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Employees of the Group in the PRC participate in several
defined contribution retirement schemes organised separately
by PRC municipal governments in regions where the major
operations of the Group are located. The Group is required
to contribute to these schemes at rates ranging from 13%
to 20% (2015: 13% to 21%) of salary costs including certain
allowances. A member of the retirement schemes is entitled
to retirement benefits equal to a fixed proportion of the salary
at the retirement date. The retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired staff of the Group are assumed by
these schemes.
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30 EXHBALZRS

TRANSACTIONS
(a) The Group entered into the following material transactions (a) AEBERFRNEHFERIZERARCPG
with entities controlled by, or related to, the ultimate BE B CECEARIZUOT -
holding company, CPG, during the year.
2016 2015
ZB-AF —T-%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET R AR¥®T T
Continuing related party transactions BFEERBALTZXS (M)
(note (i)
Store merchandise sold to WSL and its HEEHE R FWSLK HA8E
related entities X 749,107 991,377
Store merchandise purchased from High PR A8 /5 % 79 fm B High Orient
Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) and Enterprises Limited
its related entities (THOEL]) R H B 69,995 97,078
Rental income from Chia Tai Commercial ~HEWABEABERNEEE
Real Estate Management Co., Ltd. ERARA(EARBEDR
(“CTCREM”) and its subsidiary HHM B AR 7,337 7,293
Rental expenses to HEXHXZT
- Shanghai Kinghill Limited (“SKL”) - LEBERBRERDE
(bS5 18,000 18,000
- Anhui Zhengtong Enterprises Co., Ltd. - RYEREEERAF 2,096 8,384
- Kunshan Xinmin Property Co., Ltd. -—ELERRBEERAT 7,938 8,198
- Shantou Xinping Investment —WEREEREZH
Consultation Co., Ltd. ) BRAE 14,880 14,930
Master trademark fee paid to CPG IBHEEAZMIFCPG 962 879
Other related party transactions (note (ii)) EH B AL 2R 5 (KiaE(i))
Reimbursement of staff costs (note (iii)) EERARERE (K ESI%) 13,671 16,145
Allocation of administrative expenses at THE R UR AR D B FWSLKE
cost to WSL and its related entities H AR 2 (B EE (i)
(note (iii)) - 6,138 9,826
Guarantee fee payable to Zheng Xin Bank EREAXNFERRT
Co., Ltd. AR 625 525
Notes: B &E
(i) These related party transactions constitute continuing )y WEHEBAATZXZHEA LR
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the FUAZTEE T2 REBERSR
Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the AARCEFRIE LR AE14A
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of BSoWBERE I ZFCPG
the Listing Rules. In addition, master trademark fee paid to ZEIHEERAN LTRAFEI14AZE
CPG is exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter TERFREE -B=-ZFT—FE—A
14A of the listing rules. Since 27 January 2016, the store —tLtH#E HRCPGZIEREE
merchandise sold to WSL and its related entities is no longer e HEFWSLKR EAHE D
continuing connected transactions, as the share-holding (¥CERTBRFERERS - R
structure of CPG changed. The store merchandise sold to TE-RE-A-HEZZT—X<F
WSL and its related entities during the period from 1 January —HB=Z+AB (BEFEEEMmMX) B[
2016 to 26 January 2016 (inclusive) was RMB130,955,824. BWSLKE X HE 2 /5
m A R#130,955,824 7 °
(i) These related party transactions constitute connected iy HZEHEBEATZXRZHEMA WKL
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, FUAEEE T ZEERS > A
however, they are exempt from the disclosure requirements RETIRBIEI1AAZE TERRINE -
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
(i) The employment contracts of certain individuals who (i) HETERAEETFBERBWSLE
previously worked for the Group but now work for WSL HABECEZRIE2A LT ZERE
and its related entities on a full-time basis remained with BHNMRBERAER - SNE T 2
the Group. The employment costs of such individuals were ERKXABWSLE Hf@ELCERE
reimbursed by WSL and its related entities to the Group. TAEE o NHIFE4(0) TR ZREMK
Total staff costs disclosed in note 4(b) are stated net of such T MBREZEE ©
reimbursement.
Further, following the organisation restructuring in 2013, the o BEER T -—Z=F 23 EE
Group shares certain administrative services with WSL and B AREFBEWSLE EEE XS
its related entities. The Group charges the costs applicable EEFTITBRG - AEBE UK AE
to WSL and its related entities on a cost basis. g%mﬂﬁﬁﬁR‘WSL&E*ﬁ ¥z
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) The Group had the following balances with related

(c)

companies:

30 EXAHBALZRS (&)

In addition to the loans from controlling shareholder
disclosed in note 20, the Group had other balances due

with related companies as follows.

(b) AEMMEREBADEERMT

BRI EE20FTIN R < B RE R
o AEBEREMBRECE &N
T

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T AR T

Due from related companies WA ¥ RIE
— WSL and its related entities —WSLKk ERBEZE 384,788 315,152
- HOEL and its related entities —HOELK HHB % 208 422
- CTCREM and its subsidiary —EXEERHEKEB AR 2,210 4,074
387,206 319,648

Due to related companies A EESERE
- CPG —CPG 1,005 915
— WSL and its related entities —WSLK BB 80,172 85,736
— HOEL and its related entities —HOELK HiRRE % 16,482 22,559
— SKL and its subsidiaries - EBFERENB LR 42,571 30,073
— Other related companies —-HiEmE % 189 282
140,419 139,565

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as

disclosed in note 6, is as follows:

(c) TEEEAEME

FEBFEEBAB S  BEMK
FOWECEZNFARATNEEZEE
mT

2016 2015

—E-RF —E-5F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®BTr| AR®T

Short-term employee benefits HHESREF 26,077 24,112
Post-employment benefits ZEEEE T 46 30
Termination benefits EHHRIEHE - -
Equity compensation benefits ERRERA - -
26,123 24,142

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

4(b)).
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31 DISPOSAL OF TWO SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

(b)

Disposal of Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods Co., Ltd.
(“CP Xi Duo Wu”)

The Group entered into an agreement to dispose of its
equity interest in CP Xi Duo Wu to a related company,
Chia Tai Land Company Limited, for a consideration
of approximately RMB6.5 million. The disposal was
completed on 14 September 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, CP Xi Duo Wu
contributed approximately RMB1.6million (2015: RMB2.8
million) to the Group’s revenue and accounted for
approximately RMBO0.1 million of the Group’s net loss
(2015: RMBO0.5 million).

This transaction constituted a connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule and the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with the Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Disposal of Xian Delian Trading Co., Ltd. (“Xian Delian”)

On 24 May 2016, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of its equity interest in Xian Delian to
an independent third party for a consideration of
approximately RMB1.0 million. The disposal was
completed on 6 July 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Xian Delian
contributed approximately RMB4.5million (2015: RMB14.6
million) to the Group’s revenue and accounted for
approximately RMBO0.4 million of the Group’s net loss
(2015: net profit of RMBO0.4million).

31 HERMXH B QT

(a)

(b)

HELBNEEZERRERLAT
(MrgEZE])

AEBEANNT 2 —RABFLE  E
KREWAERDATT L REEZDRS
LR B A R #6,500,000T HE Mg
EZBERAER WEBHECK=
E-XREAATHAERERK -

HIEt-—Z—XR"E+ZA=1+—HLHF
E MNEESBHAEERANAR
#%£1,600,000c (ZE—FHF : AR
2,800,0007T) RIEAREBEEFHEN
AER#100,000t (ZE—FHF : AR
#500,0007T) ©

BERXZRELTRAUELAZEERT
CRK-—EHRERXZ RARECET
BEBEETRAUFUVAZEZRERTE

HEAZBREEZERLFA ((ARE
= )

RZE-AREFAZ+MA » AEH
HBVE=FEIREEERE U
RE LY AR%1,000,000T HERAZL
EERAES c WIEHEERZ=ZE
—NEFEEtARNBRERK -

BE-Z-—X"E+A=+—HL
FE AZBELOAEERANAR
#4,500,000T (ZE—HF : AR
14,600,0007T) RGN E B EIEFE
Y AR¥400,000t (ZE—HF &
F;E2E A A R ¥400,0007T) °
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31 DISPOSAL OF TWO SUBSIDIARIES 31 HEMRMHE L F (&)

(Continued)

(c) The major classes of assets and liabilities in CP Xi Duo Wu (c) REEHE NEESZERALESE

and Xian Delian as at the date of disposal were as follows: ZHEHERAZETEEEREEER

mT

CP Xi Xian

Duo Wu Delian

hNEEZE AREE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTRT AR®TR

Property, plant and equipment M- EERZE

(note 9(a)) (K 5E9(a)) 10 20
Inventories ZE 1,523 591
Trade and other receivables EERHAMEKRE 7,064 97
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREEH 2,564 209
Trade and other payables EERHEMEMNRIE (3,104) -

8,057 917

Shareholding percentage FE A 7 25 L 4B 80% 100%
Net assets disposed of HEEEFHE 6,446 917
Gain on disposal (note 3) HEZEA (FFaE3) 54 94
Cash consideration receivable FEWIR & 2 R ENRIE 6,500 1,011
An analysis of the net inflow of FRALECRERREER

cash and cash equivalents in respect RANFEIMWOT -

of the disposal is as follows:
Consideration received, satisfied EWRERE UREAFKX

in cash Y EY 6,500 1,011
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZHRERBEEZHE (2,564) (209)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BEEHECZRENRESEH

in respect of the disposal RANFEE 3,936 802
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32 AR E M BRI BE

FINANCIAL POSITION

32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E-AEF —E-iF
_t=A8 _T=A
=+—H =+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR AR TR
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - FEERRE 694 1,296
Interests in subsidiaries MEBARERE 2,416,371 2,797,484
Other long-term prepayments HttRHAFEAER 1,333 1,590
2,418,398 2,800,370
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables EE R H i ERIE 321,324 93,451
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEHE 12,764 23,566
334,088 117,017
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables EERHEMEMNTRE 89,479 473,167
Bank loans RITEMN - 36,595
Other loans HuERK 17,365 16,264
106,844 526,026
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (8 FHE 227,244 (409,009)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE 2,645,642 2,391,361
Non-current liabilities RBEE
Bank loans RITEM - 109,786
Loans from controlling shareholder EAERRREER 136,756 -
136,756 109,786
NET ASSETS BEEFR 2,508,886 2,281,575
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR@EE
Share capital fix 25(c) 405,726 405,726
Reserves #E 25(a) 2,103,160 1,875,849
TOTAL EQUITY R 2,508,386 2,281,575

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 23 February 2017.

Soopakij Chearavanont
#E A

(=]

Director
EE

REZE—tEF-_A-t+t=HEESSMHE
REETIH -

Director
E

Umroong Sanphasitvong
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33 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING

COMPANIES

At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate
holding company to be C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and
ultimate holding company to be Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited, which is incorporated in the Kingdom of
Thailand. None of these entities produces financial statements
available for public use.

34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The selection of critical accounting
policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors
to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial
statements. Notes 9, 10 and 11 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and goodwill. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

(a) Going concern

The directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light
of the Group’s net current liabilities of approximately
RMB1,825.0 million. The directors consider that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements using
a going concern basis. Further details are set out in
notes 1(b) and 26(b). Should the Group be unable to
continue as a going concern, all of the Group’s assets
and liabilities would have to be stated at net realisable
value. In particular, the non-current assets and the non-
current liabilities would have to be reclassified as current
assets and current liabilities respectively and provision for
contingent liabilities may be required as a result.

(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the estimated useful lives of the
assets and their residual values, if any. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land, goodwill
and other non-current assets may not be recoverable,
these assets may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36, “Impairment of assets”. The carrying amounts
of these assets are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined
below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable, except for goodwill which is tested annually
for impairment. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount.
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which
goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the net selling price and the value in use.
It is difficult to precisely estimate selling prices because
quoted market prices for the Group’s assets are not
readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and amount of operating costs.

Deferred tax

At 31 December 2016, the Group has recognised a
deferred tax asset in relation to tax losses carried forward
of certain PRC subsidiaries, as set out in note 24(b). The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised. In
assessing the need to recognise a deferred tax asset,
management considers all available evidence, including
projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies,
historical taxable income, and the expiration period of the
losses carried forward. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits are less than expected, a reversal of a
deferred tax asset may arise, which will be recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which such a reversal takes
place.

34 &5t b at K& M B (&)

(c)

(d)

A

EERBERRE - FERRE - A
Bt BHERAMFERBDEE 2K
EETRELRER  WEEERE
WEBRE] MEREBRAIRER
2 RT 2RI 5E365% - [ & & Bl A/ T
ReoBEEECRAESEHEH
DUFHE IR SR S B BRE RN R
HE EESHIBBETRUEEE
Z R AR AT R R B -
EESETREIR  HESFETR
ERHAZEER - FHERER
REESRETREOHE BEEHd
BOREAGHBEIRTZHEE
EBEzEREE - TREEELSE
BEFRANFEAEECERSE - BRI
AMSAEEEEZTSHRE At
HNERMGITHEE REEEME
B BEELCEAHRESRZER
ERER > MUTFER WG REEKAR
SREHERHE - AEERARE
BRENEE WD 2 S ERLD
TH BREERUEREERSTTHE
ZRERA X F 2 FRER TR AF
fhEt e

i FE B 8

RIEBE—RE+ZB=+—H K&
EEERABERKT240b)ETFHE
MEBAREREFEELEEEE s — 8
HEEE EEREEECSHIE
HERAREZRFH ZNNESAEMA
FRZERE N LBER —EBELR
BEER SEEBEZEMEVESZE
B SREBERRRERTRA » HHE
TR - BIEREZREBRKBA - REE
HEE R c EEMRARRERT A
RRTEH » —BIEFER 8 S = B 3 A
BEHIR - WAS A ZE B HIE 2 Hp R

ARER
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BE-S-AF+-A=t-ALFE(RSARBN UARBTRERD)
35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 35
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the group.

EEMERSARAREEZ
—A"NFE+ZA=+—-HI

EEM BT HEAR

BzugEs#

T
£

EETBADHB/RER2BHPHL  FBS
R AEE RS SR R ER - K
ARBEZZ-—AF+ZA=1T—HLF
EEMRILRNABERR AR -
BEUEEAEEEBZUTAR

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

RETTHREBRRARER

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: BB S #BIE7%E (BT A)

1 January 2017 Z—Z—+tF—A—H

Disclosure Initiative BHEnme TEHRE
Amendments to HKFRS 40, Investment property: BB ISR & 2RI 40%% (BFTA) - 1 January 2018 Z—Z—N\E—H—H
Transfers of investment property REYX BEREYE
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments ERVBRELERENE  £HTA 1 January 2018 Z—Z—-N\E—-F—H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers BB KR EERE155E  EELH 1 January 2018 Z—Z—-N\F—HA—H
2w
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: EBMBEMEERER  BEZH - 1 January 2018 Z—Z—N\¥—A—H
Classification and measurement of share-based BROZNEZH 7B E
payment transactions
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: EBEERE125% (BFTR) » Fr5H 1 January 2017 Z—Z—+tF&—A—H
Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised HAREHEEERELHBEE
losses
Amendments to HKFRS 4, Insurance contracts: BB MRS ER B4 (BT EK) 1 January 2018 Z—Z—-N\F—F—H
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial instruments with REEH  REBHBEEEREIR
HKFRS 4 Insurance [REEEH T &5 B EEREI
[£BIT Az @R
HKFRS 16, Leases BBNBRELERE 165 (BFIX)  HE 1 January 2019 —Z—-AF—A—H
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-ZE-AF+-A=Z+-HLFE(RBSERBI UARBTREN)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, SJ5eEMEESARBEZE-Z

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining whether
to adopt any of these new requirements before their effective
date and which transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(k), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor
and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the
lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not
to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

—R"NE+=-A=+—HLEF
BEEMZIET  FHEARR
B E (E)

REE EEFHESETRIERRER
FERAMEZEE - ESAEECRENE
AERETHAREREMBRRELE
REE -FRABPEEZE—SFHEBERT
Xt o B A A SR B 8 AR 5 B R A l%

FEEBERRETE-—SHEE I
BECHEAMBBRZARERAEMLE
FRE  RERRKBEUEHREAAFZA
THEBE -

ERMBHREERE165  HE

ﬁwmﬁ(ﬁﬁﬁ AEBEBASES
PTEARERAENEENS  YRIEHEE
Mo EHBE LRI ERTRNERE -
AEBESHBARTIETHE  MEAMW
BIfERABEAN ©

AR B ERESENEIELTEY
HEAARBETHWENNSTNEFER
EEXEARTE - R —BRBAEBHH
HEAF165E REABTBEEIME
HEHELERE - H k- ﬁEW%mﬁf
FIRIR - R AKLUEEREREZS
EXEEFRFERSE w#mﬁiﬁaﬁﬁ
W AEABRARBERENRZBEE
BRNFEHESEE [ SEZEE
[EAEIEE -RUNBBEIRZEENERE
% ABABRE S REBEREREN
ZHNEER RBERAFERAREEZINE
MEUBRELEEHESHERNRRGEE
BRHEHAMNEEER - EAERNE
wmHE ABEATMRERNE LS ENE
AREEE (AMHEERA12EA ‘SZLJ\T)
FEEEEENHEE MESZREGE
REEHAEREEEA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-ZE—X"F+-A=1t—HLEE(RBEHBEN  UARETHEN)
35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, BJSEHEMAEEARAREBEZE

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of store
premises and warehouses to operate supermarket stores in the
PRC. HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases. which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model is
expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities
and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease. As
disclosed in note 27, at 31 December 2016 the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to approximately RMB1,062 million. Some of
these amounts may need to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted. The Group will need to perform a more detailed
analysis to determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities
arising from operating lease commitments on adoption of
HKFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability of the
practical expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into
or terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and
the effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend
to adopt the standard before its effective date.
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Summary of Financial Information

MBEERBE
i

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(UAR®THREN)

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group forthe ZRNEEBELZTEVBEE-XE - EERER
last five financial years is as follows: MEWT :

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

—2--F —®-=F —F-mF “E-1fF —B-RE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBT ARBT T ARB T ARBT R

RESULTS E4
Revenue WA 10,677,425 10,881,553 10,911,966 10,660,452 10,085,679
(Loss)/profit before taxation ~ B%iAT (F18) /&7 (324,494) 21,121) (23,472) 153 (514,711)
Income tax Fre®t (67,145) (75,801) (34,972) (18,224) (22,889)
Loss for the year EEFB (391,639) (96,922) (58,444) (18,071) (537,600)
Attributable to: BT AT RS :
Equity shareholders of the ~ KA FRE

Company (391,530) (96,837) (58,428) (17,958) (537,587)
Non-controlling interests FERER (109) (85) (16) (113) (13)
Loss for the year EEFR (391,639) (96,922) (58,444) (18,071) (537,600)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZEREfR

Total assets BEE 7,717,340 7,631,416 6,945,156 7,127,637 6,886,213
Total liabilities BEF (5,644,600) (5,561,900) (4,935,041) (5,077,616) (5,363,285)
NET ASSETS BEFH 2,072,740 2,069,516 2,010,115 2,050,021 1,522,928

CAPITAL AND RESERVES &4 K fifh

Total equity attributable to  RAFRREEER L
equity shareholders of the

Company 2,070,902 2,067,763 2,008,378 2,048,397 1,522,928
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,838 1,753 1,737 1,624 -
TOTAL EQUITY BRaE 2,072,740 2,069,516 2,010,115 2,050,021 1,522,928
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Corporate Information
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Executive Directors

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman)
Mr. Li Wen Hai (Executive Chairman)

Mr. Narong Chearavanont (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Michael Ross (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Yang Xiaoping (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Audit Committee

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong

Nomination Committee

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman)
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Corporate Governance Committee
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech (Chairman)
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong
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Ms. Chung Wing Man

Authorized Representatives
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong
Ms. Chung Wing Man

Registered Office
Cricket Square,

Hutchins Drive,

P.O. Box 2681,

Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
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Principal Place of Business FTEEEMY

21st Floor BERERE TSR

Far East Finance Centre BEREMAPL-T 2

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Auditors % ]

Messrs. KPMG EERSHMEXKA

8th Floor, Prince’s Building HFEHIER

10 Chater Road EITE 5

Central RFRENE

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers FEFREIT

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited BITHRIT (FB)BRAT
The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited
Share Registrars BHBEERRLE

Hong Kong &

Tricor Progressive Limited HEBEEBRAT

Level 22 EREERER—ANTZ=H
Hopewell Centre EMPLZ+ =8

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands HEHE

Maples Corporate Services Limited Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309 P.O. Box 309

Ugland House Ugland House

Grand Cayman Grand Cayman

KY1-1104 KY1-1104

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

Share Listing % 2 £ 7 ith 2§

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ERABEXREMAERLT
Stock Code: 00121 R 3 4X55% © 00121

Company Website NGIE R
http://www.cplotuscorp.com http://www.cplotuscorp.com
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Financial Calendar and Shareholder Information
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2017 —ZE—tEHBER

Annual Results announced 23 February 2017
EAMMZEEFEE —E—t+tHF-A=+=H
Annual General Meeting June 2017
BREFKE —E2E—t+HFXA
2017 Interim Results August 2017
Bt ERGEE —2—t&)\A
Financial year end 31 December
MBEELREH +I =1 R
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION EKXRZ#EH
Share Capital % 72 Nominal value
H{E Number of
As at 31 December 2016 HK$ shares HK$’ 000
R-Z-AF+-A=+-8 B R TR
Ordinary Shares % & %
Authorised A& 0.02 34,000,000,000 680,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up E B 1TR#ZE 0.02 11,019,072,390 220,381
Series A Convertible Preference Shares A% 5l Al & IR 8 £ IR
Authorised % E 0.02 2,000,000,000 40,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B #1TR & 2" 0.02 1,518,807,075 30,376
Series B Convertible Preference Shares BZ 5| TR E LR
Authorised 3% E 0.02 4,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* E 1T R & 2" 0.02 3,897,110,334 77,942
Series C Convertible Preference Shares CZ 5l A& R &8 £ %
Authorised 5% E 0.02 4,500,000,000 90,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up** B 21T & & 2~ 0.02 3,671,509,764 73,430
Series D Convertible Preference Shares DZ 3l 7 #2 i & 5t %
Authorised £ & 0.02 2,500,000,000 50,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 1T R 2" 0.02 2,211,382,609 44,228
* Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited * HC.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
LimitediZ &
o Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited & Public o B C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited AR 8

Shareholding =R 2 % of issued

share capital
As at 31 December 2016 Number of shares BEITRA
R-ZB—XRE+=-A=+—H B & ZESHK
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited 6,788,319,021 61.61%
Public & Others AR Kk EAth 4,230,753,369 38.39%
TOTAL # 11,019,072,390 100%

Stock Code &35

Hong Kong Stock Exchange BRI 00121
Reuters Reuters 0121 HK
Bloomberg Bloomberg 121 HK
Request for Feedback BRER

Please email to contact@cplotuscorp.com for any comments on our MWMEAQATZAERBESETAEZE  BEE
public announcements and disclosures. Zcontact@cplotuscorp.com °
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